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Galle Face Capital Partners PLC is an investment trust listed on 
the Colombo Stock Exchange. The company actively manages a 
portfolio of listed equity, debt instruments, private equity and 
investments in alternate asset classes. 

To be a leading investment trust focused on value investing and wealth 
creation with a medium to long term perspective.
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KEY INVESTMENTS

  

Hatton National Bank PLC (HNB) is one of Sri Lanka’s leading private sector commercial banks, with 
a strong presence in retail, corporate, and SME banking. With a legacy spanning over a century, HNB 
is recognized for its financial strength, innovation, and commitment to digital transformation. The 
bank plays a pivotal role in supporting key industries and businesses across Sri Lanka, contributing 
to economic growth and financial inclusion. 

Galle Face Capital Partners PLC has invested in 3,500,000 shares, in Hatton National Bank PLC with 
a market value of Rs. 1,067,500,000 as of 31st March 2025.

Renuka Hotels PLC is a well-established hospitality company in Sri Lanka, known for its hotel 
properties and commitment to delivering exceptional guest experiences. With a strong presence in 
Colombo, the company blends contemporary comfort with Sri Lankan hospitality, catering to both 

-
ing a focus on quality and sustainability in the hospitality  ector.

Galle Face Capital Partners PLC has invested in 2,015,000 shares, in Renuka Hotels PLC with a 
market value of Rs. 253,386,250 as of 31st March 2025.

Cargills (Ceylon) PLC is a leading Sri Lankan conglomerate with a strong presence in retail, food 
manufacturing, and agribusiness. With a rich heritage spanning over 175 years, Cargills is renowned 
for its extensive supermarket chain, commitment to local farmers, and contributions to the coun-
try’s food and beverage industry. The company continues to drive innovation and sustainable 
growth, playing a vital role in Sri Lanka’s economic development.

Galle Face Capital Partners PLC has invested in 501,277 shares, in Cargills (Ceylon) PLC  with a 
market value of Rs. 218,556,772 as of 31st March 2025.

Ceylon Tobacco Company PLC (CTC) is one of Sri Lanka’s oldest and most profitable publicly listed 
companies, operating as the sole licensed manufacturer and distributor of tobacco products in the 
country. A subsidiary of British American Tobacco (BAT), CTC has a longstanding presence in the 
market, focusing on regulatory compliance, sustainability initiatives, and value creation for its 
stakeholders.

Galle Face Capital Partners PLC has invested in 105,000 shares, in Ceylon Tobacco Company PLC 
with a market value of Rs. 141,776,250 as of 31st March 2025.

Ceylon Hospitals PLC is a leading private healthcare provider in Sri Lanka, renowned for its advanced 
medical facilities, patient-centric care, and commitment to clinical excellence. With a legacy span-

technology, and a team of highly skilled professionals, making it a trusted name in the healthcare 
sector. 

Galle Face Capital Partners PLC has invested in 518,791 shares, in Durdans Hospital PLC with a 
market value of Rs. 66,145,852 as of 31st March 2025.
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Chairman’s Review
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Galle Face Capital Partners is a dedicated portfolio 
management company investing in equity listed on the 
Colombo Stock Exchange, treasury bills, treasury bonds 
and other equity and debt instruments. During the year 
the portfolio saw a strategic shift from debt to equity 
investments. 

The company recorded a revenue of Rs. 78 Million. The 
profit after tax was Rs. 681 Million compared to Rs. 431 
Million in the previous year. The Net Asset Value of your 
Company was Rs. 67.66 per share as against Rs. 47.23 per 
share in the preceding year. The fair value of quoted 
investments as at 31st March 2025 and 31st March 2024 
were Rs. 2,047 Million and Rs. 1,268 Million respectively. 
Whereas the debt instruments of the company as of 31st 
March 2025  stands at zero. Your board recommends a 
First and Final Dividend of Rs. 2.15 per share in the form 
of cash dividend of Rs. 0.30 and a Scrip Dividend of Rs. 
1.85 per share respectively for the financial year ended 
31st March, 2025. 

I wish to express my sincere gratitude to my fellow Direc-
tors on the Board for their support and to my colleagues 
in the Group who have worked tirelessly to add to share-
holder value for their dedication and commitment. I also 
extend my gratitude to the shareholders and other stake-
holders for the support and confidence placed in us for 
the challenges that lie ahead as well.

Sgd
S.V.Rajiyah 
31st July 2025

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I take pleasure in 
welcoming you to the 105th Annual General Meeting of 
the company and presenting to you the Annual Report 
and Audited Financial Statements of the Company for 
the year ended 31st March 2025.

The financial year ending March 2025 marked a period of 
continued recovery for the Sri Lankan economy, support-
ed by the implementation of reforms under the Interna-
tional Monetary Fund (IMF) programme. After two years 
of contraction, the economy rebounded in calendar year 
2024 with a growth rate of 5.0%, driven by industrial 
sector expansion, prudent fiscal management, and key 
policy measures.

Foreign exchange inflows remained strong, aided by 
steady export performance, rising tourism earnings, and 
robust worker remittances—factors that contributed to a 
more stable currency. At the same time, improved mone-
tary policy and a low interest rate environment provided 
a favourable backdrop for economic activity. Inflation 
remained broadly contained, reflecting better policy 
coordination and macroeconomic management.

The capital markets mirrored this positive momentum. 
The Colombo Stock Exchange (CSE) posted solid gains, 
with the All Share Price Index (ASPI) increasing by 
38.19%, while the S&P SL20 index rose by 42.70%. The 
equity market saw notable strength in the second half of 
the year, fuelled by improved economic indicators and 
the conclusion of national elections.

Meanwhile, the Central Bank of Sri Lanka maintained a 
downward trend in policy rates throughout the year. 
This, along with ample excess liquidity in the interbank 
market, led to a broad-based reduction in interest rates, 
further supporting credit growth and investment.

4



 

Directors’ Profiles
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Mr. S. V. Rajiyah
(Executive Chairman)

Mr. S. V. Rajiyah is the Executive Chairman of the compa-
ny. He is also the Managing Director of Renuka Holdings 
PLC, Renuka Foods PLC, Renuka Agri Foods PLC, Shaw 
Wallace Ceylon Ltd, Richlife Dairies Ltd and Director of 
Companies of the Renuka Group. He is also the Executive 
Chairman of Ceylon Land & Equity PLC. He is a graduate in 
Management from the Warwick Business School, Univer-
sity of Warwick, United Kingdom. He has over 20 years of 
experience in General Management.

Mr. M. S. Dominic
(Non-Executive/ Independent)

Mr. M.S. Dominic is an Independent Non-Executive Direc- 
tor and holds a BSc (Hons) degree in Computer Science 
from the University of South Bank, United Kingdom. He 
has over 38 years of experience in the Information Tech- 
nology field. He is also Director of Galle Face Properties 
Ltd, Renuka Holdings PLC and Sithijaya Fund. He is a 
trustee of the George Keyt Foundation.

Mr. K.G. Vairavanathan
(Non-Executive/ Independent)

K.G Vairavanathan is currently a non-executive independ-
ent director of Galle Face Capital Partners PLC.
He was the CEO of Asia Wealth Management (Private) 
Limited between February 2023 and May 2024. Prior to 
holding this post, he was the Managing Director of Asset- 
line Capital (Private) Limited and Assetline Securities 
(Private) Limited between November 2016 and February 
2022. He also held directorship positions in four other 
companies in the David Pieris Group, namely DPMC 
Assetline Holdings (Private) Limited, Assetline Leasing 
Company Limited, David Pieris Investment Properties 
(Private) Limited and David Pieris International Ventures 
(Private) Limited.

Before joining the DPMC Group, Mr. Vairavanathan held 
CEO/Director posts in the Capital Alliance Group for eight 
years. He was a Director of Janashakthi Limited and was 
also General Manager, Investments at Janashakthi Insur- 
ance and the head of NDB Stockbrokers.

Mr. Vairavanathan holds a Master in Business Adminis- 
tration (Finance and Investments) from the United 
States and a Bachelor of Science in Mathematics from the 
University of Sussex, United Kingdom.

Mr. K. Liyanagamage
(Non-Executive/ Independent)

Mr. K. Liyanagamage is an Independent Non-Execu- tive 
Director and an Attorney-at-Law of the Supreme Court of 
Sri Lanka with more than 25 years of experience in the 
field of Civil & Commercial Law. He holds a degree of 
Master of Laws in Law of International Trade from the 
University of Wales. He is presently serving as a Director 
of Galle Face Properties Ltd, Ceylon Land & Equity PLC 
and Alpha Fire Services PLC.

Mr. M. R. Ratnasabapathy
(Non-Executive/ Independent)

Mr. M. R. Ratnasabapathy is a Chartered Global    Man-
agement Accountant (CGMA), a Fellow of the Chartered 
Institute of Management Accountants (FCMA, UK), and 
holds an MBA from the Postgraduate Institute of 
Management (PIM), University of Sri Jayewardenepura. 
He also holds a Master’s degree in Financial Economics 
from the University of Colombo. Mr. Ratnasabapathy has 
over 25 years of experience in finance, covering a wide 
range of industries including audit, trade, agribusiness, 
power and energy, and telecommunications—most of 
which have been in senior leadership roles.

FIT AND PROPER
To ensure compliance with listing rule 9.7.1 each member 
of the board has declared confirmity with the Fit and 
Proper assestment criteria outline in listing rule number
9.7.3 by providing signed decleration for the year under 
review. Individuals who failed to comply with the criteria 
as per the above rule will no longer be eligible to serve as 
director of the company.
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Operating Environment

We experienced yet another eventful year, as we 
witnessed the Sri Lankan economy on its way to its 
much-needed consolidation, with the crisis behind it. 
Despite the many challenges that lie ahead, economic 
stabilization began to take hold due to implementation 
of a number of key structural reforms and policy adjust-
ments. Furthermore, as a result of the continued stabili-
zation of the economy,  resulting in declining policy and 
market interest rates, thereby moving the economic 
strategy into a more expansionary mode. However, for 
the economy to remain on a more sustainable footing, 
with objectives of growth and prosperity in mind, consid-
erable work is yet to be done in terms of managing debt, 
fiscal reforms, governance and strategizing for economic 
growth.

However, keeping in line with the required fiscal reforms 
poses challenges largely in the form of fiscal revenue 
generation targets and overall debt curtailment in the 
years ahead. Despite the sharp upward tax adjustments 
that the country has experienced through income and 
indirect taxes, some favorable trends began to emerge 
such as declining interest rates, improved foreign remit-
tances, increased tourist arrivals and the gradual resump-
tion of halted projects, which has fueled a local business 
recovery, consequently impacting the Colombo Stock 
Exchange. Interest in Equity investments rose, and 
companies began reporting improved performances. The 
country’s GDP turned positive towards the latter part of 
the year, bolstering hopes for a robust recovery. Stabi-
lized exchange rates and a restored banking system for 
foreign exchange transactions significantly contributed 
to a sharp decrease in the cost of industrial inputs such as 
fertilizer and other commodities.

As per the national accounts estimates of the Depart-
ment of Census and Statistics (DCS), the Sri Lankan econ-
omy has shown positive growth in 2024 and into the first 
quarter of 2025. The economy grew by 5.0% in 2024, and 
the first quarter of 2025 saw a 4.8% year-on-year growth.
This growth has been driven by various sectors, including 
industry and services, though it is expected to moderate 
in the latter part of 2025. Agriculture sector of the econo-
my registered a growth of 1.2 whilst industrial sector 
contributed 11 and services contributed 2.4. Despite the  

recovery, medium-term growth is expected to remain 
modest, reflecting the scarring e�ects of the recent crisis, 
structural impediments to growth, and global economic 
uncertainties. The current account is expected to be in 
deficit in 2025, as the impact from reduced exports (due 
to trade-related uncertainties), outweighs the impact on 
imports (from reduced demand and global oil prices). 
With a revival in domestic demand, inflation is projected 
to turn positive by mid-2025 but remain below the central 
bank’s medium-term target. Despite continued fiscal 
consolidation, financing pressures will persist due to 
large T-bill refinancing needs. Reflecting the crisis’s 
continued impact.

Interest rates experienced a sharp decline throughout the 
financial year owing to the easing of monetary policy and 
the gradual dissipation of the threat of inflation. The 
364-day Treasury bills saw a large decrease from a range 
of 20%s to close the year at 8.2%. This was facilitated 
through the combined e�ects of the conclusion of the 
DDO, cumulative policy rate reductions of 7%, improved 
foreign exchange flow into financial institutions, relaxa-
tion of stressed interbank market liquidity and easing 
inflation. Bank fixed deposit rates also eased from 
around a high of 20% levels to reach the prevailing 8% 
levels.

The strong performance of the share market has resulted 
in majority of the investee companies experiencing 
upward share price movements. We have monitored each 
position carefully, adjusted such positions based on our 
fundamental outlook on each company and their respec-
tive discounts to intrinsic value and growth potential. Our 
equity strategy continues to focus on picking fundamen-
tally strong stocks, which are able to navigate the 
challenging operating environment and o�er growth 
potential, thus providing the prospect of long-term 
returns. The ability to select good businesses with strong 
management expertise is paramount in growing the 
portfolio in a di�cult environment

The following aspects were discussed pertaining to the 
primary macro - economic variables during the year under 
review and the resultant impacts on the performance of 
Galle Face Capital Partners PLC.
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Movement Cause Impact to Galle Face 
Capital Partners PLC
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Economy
Sri Lankan economy recorded a growth of 5 
percent in 2024/2025, in real terms, 
compared to a negative of 2.3 percent record-
ed in the preceding year.

Agriculture sector of the economy 
registered a growth of 1.2 percent 
whilst Industrial sector grew by 11 
percent and the Services sector grew by 
2.4

The performance of the agriculture, 
forestry and fishing sectors were 
impacted due to the adverse weather 
conditions which resulted in challeng-
ing conditions for the recovery of the 
sector.

The majority of subcategories within 
the industries sector registered varying 
growth rates.
Most subcategories in the services 
sector also registered growths.

The growth in GDP 
during the period of the 
financial year had a 
impact to the Company 
by way of making avail-
able investment oppor-
tunities in sound 
economic sectors.
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Inflation
In line with the Central Bank’s near term 
projections, deflationary conditions 
commenced easing around end of 2025. 
Headline inflation, as measured by the 
year-on year change in the CCPI recorded a 
slower deflation of 2.6% in March 2025. 
Non-Food deflation decelerated to 4.1% 2025 
and Food category recorded an inflation of 
0.6% in March 2025.
Looking forward, deflationary conditions are 
expected to ease further in the coming 
months, with inflation projected to turn 
positive by mid-2025 and gradually converge 
to the targeted level of 5% over the medium 
term.

As reflected by the year-on-year 
change in both the National Consumer 
Price Index (NCPI, 2021=100) and the 
Colombo Consumer Price Index (CCPI, 
2021=100), the decrease in headline 
inflation was attributed to the 
decrease in non-food inflation, though 
food inflation accounted for a larger 
share. Several adjustments made to 
energy prices and other administered 
Prices in the previous periods are now 
being slowly reversed, which has 
contributed to the increase in the 
inflation rates.

No major Impact to the 
Company.

Domestic Interest Rates 
Overnight liquidity in the domestic money 
market improved significantly, shifting from 
deficit levels to broadly balanced levels. The 
Central Bank implemented several measures 
to enhance market liquidity, including 
reverse repo auctions, overnight liquidity 
provision. These measures, aligned with an 
accommodative monetary policy stance, 
have positively impacted the overall environ-
ment.

As a result Market lending interest rates 
during 2024/25 declined further from around 
12-14% to 8-9% reflecting the liquidity condi-
tions in the market and the overall macro 
stabilization lead by the Central Bank.

Considering the build-up of inflation-
ary pressures and the imbal- ances 
that emerged in the external sector 
and financial markets, the Central 
Bank, which deployed measures 
targeting inflation, commenced mone-
tary easing measures from the begin-
ning of the financial year.
The Central Bank eased on providing 
financial support to the Government by 
way of purchasing Treasury bills from 
the primary market.

The company was well 
placed to take advan- 
tage of the short term 
disruptions in the Govt 
Securities and Share 
markets.



Movement Cause Impact to Galle Face 
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Exchange Rates
In 2024/25, yet the Sri Lanka rupee appreci-
ated marginally against the US dollar by 3 
percent from Rs. 302 as at end 2024 to Rs. 
292 as at end 2025.
 
The foreign exchange appreciation pressure 
was largely due to the limited demand for 
forex together with large renewed inflows 
from the tourism and worker remittance 
sectors. As a result, the exchange rate start-
ed to stabilize gradually at around Rs. 323 
level during the last quarter of 2023, and 
lower in subsequent periods.

The pressures that was witnessed on 
the exchange rate amidst dried up 
liquidity in the domestic foreign 
exchange market in the recent 
pastments of the foreign exchange 
inflows from tourism and other servic-
es exports as well as workers’ remit-
tances, supported the country in allevi-
ating the severe foreign exchange 
crunch that prevailed previously.

Less impact to the 
Company due to less
exposure to foreign 
Currency transactions.

Share Market
The Colombo Stock Exchange (CSE) recorded 
a growth of 33 percent in 2024/25, mainly 
responding to the general market sentiment 
and the interest rates prevailing in the 
market. The subsequent changes in the 
economy changed the tide in the Colombo 
Stock Exchange too and generated gains in 
the overall market.

Since we are seeing a decline in the 
interest rates due to central banks 
corrective actions, the market partici-
pation increased. There was much 
interest from the domestic investors 
when the interest rates were plum-
meting towards the last quarter of the 
year.

The company took 
advantage of investing 
in value stocks which 
paid rich dividends by 
the appreciation of the 
value with the gradual 
stabilization in the 
economy.

Capital Management Review
Being in the investment business, we seek creation of long term sustainable value to our shareholders while safeguard-
ing the financial stability of the Company.

Financial Capital Trading Investment portfolio:
The Company recorded a profit of Rs. 681Mn. from its fair value investment measured at Fair Value through Profit or 
Loss during the year, against a profit of Rs. 430Mn. during the previous year.

Strategic Investment Portfolio
To have a well balanced portfolio, the management of the company has focused on strategic investments during the 
year and sought to invest in value stocks. 

Short Term Deposits
Excess funds in the company had been invested in short term deposits in order to meet short term fund requirements.



Report  of the Board of Directors

1. Overview
 

 

 

The Board of directors have pleasure in presenting the 

Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 
31st March 2025 together with auditor’s Report and 
pertinent information required under section 168 of 
Companies Act No. 07 of 2007, Colombo Stock Exchange 
Listing Rules and the recommended best practices on 
Corporate Governance.

Galle Face Capital Partners PLC  incorporated in Sri 
Lanka under joint stock ordiance in 1920. The 
company was listed on the Colombo Stock 
Exchange in 2001.

“Renuka House”, No. 69, Sri Jinaratana Road, 
Colombo 02.

Section 168 of the Companies Act No 07 of the 
2007, specifies the information to be published in 
the Annual Report, Prepared for the year ended 31st 
March 2025 and compliance status of same is given 
in the Corporate Governance Report on pages No. 17
to 28 to this Annual Report.

2. Review of Business

2.1 Principal Business Activities and business review

3. Future Developments

Future development activities of the Company are 
discussed in the Chairman’s Review on the page No. 
4 to this Annual Report.

4. Financial Statements of the Company

The Financial Statements of the Company duly 
approved by two Directors in compliance with the 
requirements of sections 151, 152 and 168(1) (b) of 
the Companies Act No 07 of 2007 are given on pages 
No. 47 to 73 to this Annual Report.

6. Auditor’s Report

5. Directors’ Responsibility for Financial Statements

The principal activity of the Company is to invest in 
equity, debt and other alternate asset classes. The 
Chairman’s Review contains the performance of 
the Company and the future developments. 
Further risk involvement analysis and measures 
taken to mitigate the risks are given in the 
Management Discussion and Analysis and the Risk 
Management Report.

Galle Face Capital Partners PLC  2025

The Auditors of the Company, Messrs. Ernst & 
Young Chartered Accountants performed the audit 
on the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st 
March 2025 and the Independent Auditor ’s Report 
on the Financial Statements is given on pages No. 
43 to 46 of this Annual Report as required by 
section 168 (1) (c) of the Companies Act No. 07 of 
2007.

10

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of 
Financial Statements of the Company to reflect the 
state of its a�airs. The Directors are of the view that 
Statement of Financial Position, Statement of 
Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, 
Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash
Flows presented on pages No. 47 to 50 have been 
prepared in accordance with the requirements of the 
Sri Lanka Accounting Standards as mandated by the 
Sri Lanka Accounting and Auditing Standards Act 
No. 15 of 1995 and the Companies Act No. 07 of 
2007. Further, these Financial statements are also 
complying with the requirements of listing rules of 
the Colombo Stock Exchange. The “Statement of 
Directors’ Responsibilities” appearing on pages No. 
41 to 42 of this Annual Report forms an integral part 
of this report.



Report  of the Board of Directors Contd..

as required by the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007.

7. Accounting Policies and Changes During the Year 
 

 

The Company prepared its Financial Statements in 
accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards 

under review. The significant accounting policies 
adopted in the preparation of Financial Statements 
of the Company are given on pages No. 51  to 60 to 
this Annual Report as required by Section 168 (1) (d) 
of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007. The Board 
confirms that there were no changes to the 
Accounting Policies used by the Company during 
the year.

8. Financial Results and appropriations

The Company turnover for the year ended 31st 
March 2025  was  Rs. 78Mn. compared to Rs. 32Mn. 
in  the  previous  year.  Further  net profit  after tax 
of the Company  was Rs. 681 Mn. compared  with 
the  net  profit  of Rs. 431 Mn. for the previous year. 
Detailed analysis of the Revenue is given in Note 
No. 14 to the Financial Statements.

9. Dividends and Reserves

 
9. 1 Profit appropriations

The  Company  had a profit of Rs. 683 Mn. before tax 
for the year ended 31st March 2025 compared to 
Profit of Rs. 431Mn.  in 2024  and Net Profit after 
tax was Rs. 681  Mn. (2024  net profit after tax of 
Rs. 431Mn).

 
9. 2 Dividends on Ordinary Shares

 
9. 2.1 Solvency Test

Solvency test has been carried out by the Board of 
Directors before the payment of the final dividend 
as required by the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007.

9.3 Provision for Taxation

9.4 Reserves

The Reserves of the Company are given in the 
Changes in Equity Statement to the Financial 
Statements on page No. 49 to this Annual Report.

10. Investments

The Group has a share portfolio in quoted shares 
amounting  to Rs. 2.047 Bn.  Detailed  portfolio  of 
the investments held by the Company is given in 
Note No. 3 to the Financial Statements.

11. Property, Plant & Equipment and
Capital Expenditure

There were no Property, Plant & Equipment held by 
the Company.

12. Market value of Freehold Properties and 
Investment Properties

There are no Freehold or Investment Properties held 
by the Company.

13. Stated capitaL

Galle Face Capital Partners PLC  2025

The taxable income of the Company is taxed at 30%  
Taxable income is arising from the operations of the 
Company and has been disclosed in accordance with 
Sri Lanka Accounting Standards. The Company has 
provided deferred tax on all known temporary di�er-
ences under the liability method, as permitted by 
the Sri Lanka Account- ing Standard - LKAS 12 on 
“Income Taxes” Information on Income Tax Expens-
es & Deferred Taxes are given in Notes No. 18 to the 
Financial Statements.

The Stated capital of the Company as at 31st March 
2025 was Rs. 596,528,794/- Comprised of 
28,894,939 Ordinary shares (2024 - Rs. 542,775,948 
comprising 26,949,524 Ordinary Shares).
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The Board of Directors has recommended Rs 2.15 per 
share consisting of a script divident of Rs. 1.85 cents 
per share and a cash dividend of Rs. 0.30 cents per 
share for the financial year 2024/25. The Directors 
are confident that the Company would meet the 
solvency test requirement under Section 56 (2) of 
the Companies Act of No. 7 of 2007 immediately 
after the proposed final dividend distribution.



14. Share Information
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Name of Director Executive Non-Executive Independent

Mr. S. V. Rajiyah (Chairman) X

Mr. M.S. Dominic X X

Mr. K.G. Vairavanathan X X

Mr. K. Liyanagamage X X
Mr.M.R Ratnasabapathy X X

14.1 Information on earnings, net assets and 
market values 
Information relating to earnings and net assets are 
given with five year summary appearing on page 
No. 74 to this Annual Report. Market value details 
of the ordinary shares are appearing with Share-
holders’ Information on pages No. 75 to 77 of this 
Annual Report.

15. Major Shareholdings
 Details of the twenty largest shareholders with the 

percentage of their respective shareholdings as at 
31st March 2025 are given on page No. 77 together 
with comparative shareholdings.

16. Interest Register
 

14.2 
 

Distribution schedule is given on pages No. 75 to 
77  to  this   Annual    Report   together   with 
Shareholders’ and investors’ information.

17. Equitable treatment to all shareholders

The Company has made every endeavor to ensure 
the equitable treatment to all shareholders and 
adopted adequate measures to prevent informa-
tion asymmetry.

18. Public Holding

19. Information to Shareholders
The Board strives to be transparent and provide 
accurate information to shareholders in all public 
material.

The quarterly financial information during the year 
has been sent to the Colombo Stock Exchange in a 
timely manner.

20.1 List of Directors

the financial year are given below. The brief profile 
of the Board of Directors appear on page No. 5 to 
this Annual Report.

The basis on which Directors are classified as 
Independent and Non-Executive directors is 
discussed in the Corporate Governance Report.

20. Board of Directors

The Interests Register is maintained by the 
Company Secretary, as per the Section 168(1) (e) of 
the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007. All Directors have 
made their declarations as provided for in section 
192(1) & (2) of the Companies Act aforesaid. The 
Share ownership of Directors is disclosed on page 
No. 13 to this Annual Report, Entries were made in 
the Interests Register on share transaction and 
Directors’ interest in contracts. The Interest
Register is available for inspection by shareholders 
or their authorised representatives as required by 
the section 119 (1) (d) of the Companies Act No. 07 
of 2007.
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There were 2,269 (2024-2,272) registered sharehold- 
ers as at 31st March 2025 out of which public share- 
holding with the percentage of shares held by the 
public, as per the Colombo Stock Exchange rules, 
being 29.95% (2024 - 47.39%).
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Name of Director

As at 31st

March 

2025

As at 01st
April  
2024

M
with Mrs. J.J.B.A. Rajiyah)

r. S. V. Rajiyah (Joint 

      -

Mr. M.S. Dominic -
-

-
Mr. S.V. Rajiyah

1,403

Mr. K.G. Vairavanathan -

300,000

-

- -Mr. K. Liyanagamage
- -Mr.M.R Ratnasabapathy*

* Appointed w.e.f. 27/09/2024

           Share dealings by Directors during the year were 
           disclosed to Colombo Stock Exchange.

 

 
 

 
 

20.2 Recommendation for re-election
 

20.3 Directors Meetings
 Details of the meetings of the Board of Directors are 

presented on page No. 18 to this Annual Report.

20.4 Directors’ Interest in transactions
 The Company carried out transactions in the 

ordinary course of business with the entities which 
a Director of the Company is a Director. The transac-
tions with the entities where a Director of the 
Company either has control or exercises significant 
influence have been classified as related party 
transaction and disclosed in Note 20 to the Finan-
cial Statements. The Directors have no direct or 
indirect interest in any other contract or proposed 
contract with the Company.

20.5 Directors’ Interest in Shares
 Directors of the Company and who have relevant 

interest in shares of their respective companies 
have disclosed their shareholdings and any acquisi-
tions/ disposals to their Boards, in compliance with 
section 200 of the Companies Act.

Directors holdings, in Ordinary Shares of the 
Company are given in the below table.

20.6 Remuneration of Directors

The remuneration of Directors in respect of the 
Company for the year ended 31st March 2025 is 
given in note No. 17 to the Financial Statements.

20.7 Directors Responsibility for Financial Reporting

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of 
Financial Statements of the Company to reflect a 

Directors are of the view that these Financial State-
ments have been prepared in conformity with the 
requirements of the Sri Lanka Accounting Stan-
dards (SLFRS/LKAS) issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka, Companies Act 
No. 7 of 2007, Sri Lanka Accounting and Auditing 
Standards Act No.15 of 1995 and the Listing Rules 
of Colombo Stock Exchange.

20.8 Board Committees

The Board has established committees for better 

operations and control.

 Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprising of Non- Executive 
Directors are provided on pages No. 35 to 36 of this 
Annual Report. Detailed scope of the Audit 
Committee and their work during the year disclosed 
in Audit Committee Report given on  page  No. 35 -
36 this Annual Report.

 Related Party Transactions Review Committee
(RPTR)

Galle Face Capital Partners PLC  2025

Mr. Rathnasabapathay was appointed as a director 
from 27th September 2024. 
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Related Party Transactions Review Committee 
(RPTRC) comprise of three independent non- execu-
tive Directors. Detailed scope and the meetings held 
during the year under review is given in the RPTR 
Committee Report on pages No 37 to 38 in this Annual 
Report

To re-elect Mr. M.S. Dominic as a Director who 
retires by rotation in terms of Article 73 (1).
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 Remuneration Committee
 The scope and meetings of the Remuneration 

Committee is given in the Remuneration Commit-
tee report on page No. 40 in this Annual Report.

Nomination & Governance Committee

21. Related Party Transactions
 The Board of Directors has given the statement in 

respect of the related party transactions. The 
related party transactions of the Company during 
the financial year have been reviewed by the Relat-
ed Party Transactions Review Committee and are in 
compliance with the Section 09 of the CSE Listing 
Rules.

22. Statutory Payment
 The Directors, to the best of their knowledge and 

belief are satisfied that all statutory payments are 
due to the Government; other regulatory institu-
tions have been made on time.

Declaration relating to statutory payments is made 
in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities on 
the pages No. 41 to 42 to this Annual Report.

23. Environmental Protection
 The Directors, to the best of their knowledge and 

belief are satisfied that the Company has not 
engaged in any activities, which have caused 

complied with the relevant environmental regula-
tions.

24. Events Occurring After the Reporting Date

There are no events of material and significance 
nature that requires adjustment to the Financial 
Statements, occurred subsequent to the date of the 
reporting date, other than those disclosed in Note 
No. 24 to the Financial Statements.

25. Going Concern

The Directors, after considering the financial 
position, operating conditions, regulatory and other 
factors including matters addressed in the Corpo-
rate Governance code, have reasonable expectation 
that the Company has adequate resources to 
continue in operational existence for the foresee-
able future. Therefore the going concern basis has 
been adopted in the preparation of the Financial 
Statements.

26. Corporate Donations

The Company has not made any donations during 
the year under review.

27. Risk Management

28. Internal Controls

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for 
the Company’s system of internal control. The 
system is designed to give assurance, interalia, 
regarding the safeguarding of assets, the mainte-
nance of proper accounting records and the reliabili-
ty of financial information generated.

The Company has a structured risk management 
process in place to support its operations. The Galle 
Face Capital Partners PLC’s Board, Audit Commit-
tee play a major role in this process. The Risk 
Management Report elaborates these processes 
and the Company’s risk factors.
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The scope and meetings of the Nomination & Govern-
ance Committee is given in the Nomination & Govern-
ance Committee report on pages No. 39 in this Annual 
Report.
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However, any system can only ensure reasonable 
and not absolute assurance that errors and irregu-
larities are either prevented or detected within a 
reasonable time period. The Board, having reviewed 
the system of internal controls, is satisfied with the 

controls for the year up to the date of signing the 
Financial Statements.

35. Compliance with Transfer Pricing Regulations
All transactions are entered in to with associated 
persons during the period are comparable with 
transactions carried out with non-associated 
parties and are on arm's length basis.

36. Employees and industrial Relations

37. 

38. Auditors’ Remuneration and Interest in Contracts
The fee amount paid/payable for the services 
provided to the Company during the year with corre-
sponding figures for the previous year is present in 
Note No. 15 to Financial Statements.

39. Annual Report

Sgd. S.V.Rajiyah

For and on behalf of the Board.

Chairman

40. Annual General Meeting

Sgd. M.S. Dominic
Director

41. Acknowledgment of the contents of the Report
As required by section 168(1) (k) of the Companies 
Act No.07 of 2007 the Board of Directors hereby 
acknowledge the contents of this report.

Sgd. Renuka Enterprises (Pvt) Ltd.
Managers and Company Secretaries 
31st July 2025 

29. Capital Commitments
 No significant capital commitments exist as at 31st 

March 2025 other than those disclosed in Note No. 
22 to this Financial Statements.

30. Compliance with Laws and Regulations
 The Company has complied with all applicable laws 

and regulations. A compliance checklist is signed- 

any violations are reported to the Board Audit 
Committee. Detailed report of the Audit Committee 
is given on pages No. 35 to 36 to this Annual Report.

31. Contingent Liabilities

There are no contingent liabilities existed as at the 
Balance Sheet date except what is disclosed in the 
Note No. 22 to the Financial Statements.

32. Outstanding Litigations

There are no litigations pending against the Compa-
ny as at the Balance Sheet date.

33 Code of Conduct

The Company demands impeccable standards of 
conduct from its Directors and employees in the 

-

34 Corporate Governance

The Company has complied with the Corporate 
Governance rules laid down under the Listing Rules 
of the Colombo Stock Exchange. The Corporate 
Governance Report on pages 17 to 28 detailed this 
further.

There are no employees attached to Galle Face 
Capital Partners PLC.

Following the issuance of guidelines by the Colom-
bo Stock Exchange (CSE) the 105th Annual General 
Meeting of Galle Face Capital Partners PLC will be 
held on 19th September 2025.

Appointment of Auditors
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Messrs Ernst & Young, Chartered Accountants, who 
are the Company Auditors during the year, will be 
re-appointed, in terms of Section 158 of the Compa-
nies Act No.7 of 2007, as Auditors of the Company. A 
resolution to appoint Messrs Ernst & Young Chartered 
Accountants as auditors of the company for the 
financial year 2026 and authorizing directors to fix 
their remuneration will be proposed at the forthcom-
ing Annual General Meeting.

The Board of Directors approved the Company Finan-
cial Statements on 31st July 2025. The appropriate 
number of copies of this report will be submitted to 
Colombo Stock Exchange and to the Sri Lanka 
Accounting and Auditing Standards Monitoring 
Board. 



 

Statement by the Senior Independent Director

Profile of Mr.Kishan Ganesh Vairavanathan is given on 
page no 04 of this report.

In compliance with Section 9.6.3. 2 of the Listing Rules of 
the Colombo Stock Exchange, the Board of Directors of 
the Company appointed me as the Senior Independent 

2023. 

Section 9.6.3. 2 of the Listing Rules Provide that in the 
event the Chairman is an Executive Director  a Senior 
Independent Director shall be appointed. 

At Galle Face Capital Partners PLC Mr Shamindra 
Vatsalan Rajiyah remains as Chairperson and Executive 
Director, in the interest of the Company.

ROLE OF THE SENIOR INDEPENDENT
DIRECTOR (SID)

The Senior Independent Director provides guidance to 
the Chairman on matters of governance of the Company.

The Senior Independent Director makes himself available 
to any Director or any employee to have confidential 

need arise.

ACTIVITIES DURING THE YEAR

Meetings were held with the Non-Executive Directors 
without the presence of the Executive Directors. At these 
meetings the performance of the Chairman and the 
Executive Director was appraised. The outcome of these 
meetings together with recommendations were duly 
informed to the Chairman and the Board.

As we look to the future, company remain focused on 
navigating the challenges and opportunities that lie 
ahead. Galle Face Capital Partners PLC’s strategic priori-
ties will continue to be underpinned by our commitment 

-
ment, and sustainable growth.

As the senior independent director, I am confident that 
the process and practices established by Galle Face 
Capital Partners PLC ensure that the role of the  SID is 

-
nance of the company. 

The independence and objectivity of the SID, along with 
the engagement with both the board and share holders, 
help to maintain transparency, accountability and trust 
in our corporate governance frame work.

I remain committed to upholding these standards and 
will continue to work closely with the board to ensure 
that the company aligned with the best practices in 
corporate governance. 

K.G. Vairavanathan 
Senior Independent Director
31st July 2025
Colombo
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Executive Director Non – Executive and
Directors

Mr. S. V. Rajiyah Mr. M.S. Dominic

Mr. K.G. Vairavanathan
(Independent)

(Independent)

Mr. K. Liyanagamage
(Independent)

Mr.M.R Ratnasabapathy
(Independent)

Galle Face Capital Partners PLC is involved in Investing 
and trading in equity and other alternative asset classes. 
Therefore, structured and sound Corporate Governance 
processors are  required to mitigate the risk involved and 
to provide added value to its shareholders and other 
stakeholders. The Renuka Group Corporate Governance 
framework facilitates Galle Face Capital Partners PLC too 
to adhere and adopt a well sounded corporate gover-

of corporate relationships and deliver continuous value 
to its stakeholders. Core principles of accountability, 
participation and transparency have been in-built to the 
corporate governance system and manage the wider 
range of Companies in the Renuka Group.

The Company holds itself accountable to the highest 
standards of Corporate Governance and provides public 
accessibility to the information of the Company. Corpo-
rate Governance has been institutionalized at all levels in 
the Group through a strong set of corporate values which 
have been adhered to by the Senior Management and 

Company image.

The Company is committed to the highest standards of 
integrity, ethical values and professionalism in all its 
activities.

At the Group level, we set our framework of Corporate 
Governance in line with Code of Best Practice on Corpo-
rate Governance issued by the Institute of

Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and the rules set out 
in the Colombo Stock Exchange Listing Rules and also 
comply with the Country’s Legislative and Regulatory 
requirement. This applies to Galle Face Capital Partners 
PLC as well.

Corporate Governance System
The Board of Directors who are appointed by the share-
holders are the ultimate governing body of the Company 
having the highest decision making authority and overall 
responsibility for determining the strategic directions of 
the Company. In all actions taken, the Board of Directors 
is expected to exercise their business judgment consider-
ing the best interest of the Company. The Corporate 
Governance frame work is subject to continuous reviews, 
assessments and improvements to provide best interest 
to its stakeholders.

BOARD LEADERSHIP

Composition of the Board
The Board comprised of five  Directors as at the date the
Financial Statements are approved, of which one Director 
is Executive and four  Directors are Non- Executive. Four
of  the  Non-Executive  Directors  are  Independent. The 
status of Directors are given below.

The Board determined that the Independence of the 
Directors should be measured in accordance with the 
Colombo Stock Exchange Rules and the Independent 
Non  Executive Directors  have  submitted signed confir-
mation of their Independence. The profiles of the Direc-
tors are given in page No. 05 to this Annual Report which 
states that all the Directors are having diverse experience, 
being eminent professionals and dynamic entrepreneurs 
in the corporate world.
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This is a robust framework of structures, principles, policies, 
procedures, codes and processors to ensure that our Group 
values and standards are maintained throughout the 
Companies in the Group. Corporate Governance essentially 
involves balancing the interests of the shareholders and 
many stakeholders of the Company which extend to 
Management, Customers, Suppliers, Financiers, Govern-
ment and the Community at large. Since Corporate Govern-
ance also provides the framework for attaining the objec-
tives of the Company, it encompasses practically every 
sphere of management, from action plans and internal 
controls to performance measurement and corporate 
disclosure.



 

Report on the Corporate Governance Contd..

Role & Responsibilities of the Board

Whilst the management provides information to the Board 
on regular basis, relating to the Company operations, the 
Board meets quarterly and gives full consideration to the 
followings:

• Reviewing of strategic and key business 
performances

• Reviewing of profit/loss and asset position and 
quarterly management accounts

• Providing advice and guidelines to senior Managers
• Approving major Investments
• Approving the Interim and Annual Reports
• Risk management and adequacy of internal 

controls of the Company
• Seeking business developments and expansions in 

the Company
• Reviewing reports of Related Party Transactions, 

Compliance with legal and regulatory requirement

Board Composition

Board Meetings and Attendance

Name of the Director
Eligible to

Attended
Attended

Mr. S.V. Rajiyah (Chairman)

Mr. M.S. Dominic

Mr. K.G. Vairavanathan

Mr. K. Liyanagamage

Mr. M.R Ratnasabapathy*

* Appointed w.e.f. 27/09/2024

4

4

4

4

3

4/4

4/4

4/4

3/4

3/3

The composition of Executive and Non-Executive 
Independent Directors on the Board who are profession-
als / academics / business leaders holding senior 
positions in their respective fields ensures a right balance 
between executive expediency and independent 
judgment as no individual Director or small Group of 
Directors dominate the Board discussion and decision 
making.

Chairman’s Role
-

ness and conduct of the Board whilst the Management 
has overall responsibilities over the operating units, 

Board policies and decisions.

The Chairman ensures that Board members have access 

opportunity to obtain clarifications on the matters before 
the meetings through presentations and documents 
prepared by the management and their teams. Board 
members also have access to key management personnel 

updates on performance of the Company, compliance 
with regulatory requirements such as Colombo Stock 
Exchange Listing rules, Companies Act requirements and 
compliance with tax regulations.

Financial Acumen

The Board aims at fulfilling its responsibilities by creating 
value for all the stakeholders that is sustainable and bene-
ficial. Under the direction of the Executive Director and 
oversight of the Board, the business of the Company is 
conducted to enhance the long term value of the Company. 
The Board gives leadership in setting the strategic 
direction and establishing a sound control framework for 
the successful functioning of the Company. The Board’s 
composition reflects a sound balance of independence.

The Board constitutes members who are having multiple 
disciplines and experiences in Finance, Marketing, 
Economic, Legal and Human Resources. As a result well 
balanced members in the Board have the capability in 
providing constructive debates and reviews to assist in 
developing capable strategies.
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The Board convened four times during the year ended 
31st March 2025 covering on a quarterly basis the Direc-
tors attendance at the meetings is as follows.
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the Board and the Company
Directors ensure that they dedicate adequate time and 

that the duties and responsibilities owed to the Company 
are satisfactorily discharged. Accordingly dates of 
quarterly Board meetings and Board Sub- Committee 
meetings are scheduled well in advance and the relevant 
papers and documents are circulated a week prior to each 

-
sion to circulate papers closer to the meeting on an 
exceptional basis.

Disclosure of information on Directors to Shareholders 
Information relating to each Director is disclosed with the 
profile given on page No. 05 of this Annual Report. Direc-
tor’s profiles include name, qualifications, experience, 
and material business interest.

Memberships in sub-committees are given on pages No. 
10  to 15 of this Annual Report together with attendance 
at such meetings. Attendance at Board meeting is given 
on page No. 17 to 28 to this Annual Report.

Remunerations paid to Directors are disclosed in the Note 
No. 15 to the Financial Statements. Related Party Trans-
actions had with Directors are disclosed in the Note No. 
21 to the Financial Statements. Further any Director -
ships in Listed Companies established in Sri Lanka are 
included in the profile of each Director on page No. 05 to 
this Annual Report.

Directors’ Remuneration Procedure
Remuneration Committee determines and sets out the 

the Group. Scope of Remuneration Committee and its 
composition are included on page No. 40 of this Annual 
Report.

Information to the Board
Directors are provided with quarterly reports on the 
performance of the Company. Chairman ensures that 
Managers provide all clarifications and documentations 
to the Board with minutes and Board papers which are 
circulated among Directors prior to seven days of the 
Board meeting.

Board Appointment and Re-election of Directors
The Board follows a formal process to appoint Directors 
to the Board mainly through the recommendation of the 
Nomination & Governance Committee.

The Articles of Association of the Company require one 
third of the Non-Executive Directors retire at each 
Annual General Meeting and the Directors who retire are 
those who have served the longest periods after their 
respective appointments/re-appointments.

Access to Independent Professional Advice
In the process of preserving the independence of the 

obtain independent and professional advice where 
necessary.

Access to Advice and Services of the
Company Secretaries
All the Directors have access to the advice and services of 
the Company Secretarial function provided by
Renuka Enterprises (Pvt) Ltd, which is responsible for 
ensuring that Board procedures are followed, compliance 
with rules and regulation, directions and statutes, 
recording minutes and maintaining required records of 
the Company.

Independent Judgment
Directors bring independent judgment to bearing on 
issues of strategy, performance, resources and standards 
on business conduct. Composition of the Board ensures 

-
tion by all the Directors without any domination by one or 
few Directors on Board processes or decision making.
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Accountability and Audit

Management is responsible for the preparation and 
presentation of Financial Statements of the Company in 
Accordance with the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards 
comprising SLFRS and LKAS. This responsibility is moni-
tored by the completion of a check list before finalizing 
the Interim and full year Financial Statements from the 
respective sector Financial Managers and Chief Financial 

The Directors’ Responsibility Statement for Financial 
Reporting is included on pages No. 41 and 42 to this 
Annual Report.

Risk Management and Internal Controls
The Board is responsible for the Company’s internal 

established with emphasis placed on safeguarding 
assets, making available accurate and timely information 
and imposing greater discipline on decision making. It 
covers all the controls, including financial, operational 
and compliance control and risk management. It is 
important to state, that any system can ensure only 
reasonable and not absolute assurance that errors and 
irregularities are prevented or detected within a reason-
able time.

Board Sub Committees
To assist the Board in discharging its duties various Board 
Sub Committees are established. The functions and 
terms of references of the Board Sub-Committees are 
clearly defined where applicable and comply with the 
recommendation of the Code of Best Practice on Corpo-
rate Governance.

The Four Board Sub Committees are as follows.

i. Audit Committee
ii. Remuneration Committee
iii. Related Party Transactions Review Committee
iv. Nomination & Governance Committee

The Board determines the remuneration of Non- Execu-
tive Directors who are paid a Directors Fee for attending 
the Board meetings and sub-committee meetings. 
However they are not paid a performance based incentive 
payment.

Stakeholder Management and Shareholder Relation-
ship Communication with Shareholders
The Board considers the Annual General Meeting as a 
prime opportunity to communicate with the sharehold-
ers of the Company. The Shareholders are given the 
opportunity of exercising their rights at the Annual 
General Meeting. The notice of the Annual General Meet-
ing and the relevant documents required are published 
and circulated to the shareholders within the statutory 
period.

The Company circulates the agenda of the meeting and 
shareholders’ vote on each issue separately. All the 
shareholders are invited and encouraged to participate 
the Annual General Meeting. The Annual General Meet-
ing provides an opportunity for the shareholders to seek 
and obtain clarifications and information on the perfor-
mance of the Company and to informally meet the Direc-
tors. The External Auditors are also present at the 
Annual General Meeting to render any professional assis-
tance that may be required. Shareholders who are not in 
a position to attend the Annual General Meeting in 
person are entitled to have their voting rights exercised 
by a proxy of their choice. The Company publishes 
quarterly accounts and Annual Report in a timely manner 
as its principal mode of communication with sharehold-
ers and others. This enables stakeholders to make a 
rational judgment of the Company.

Disclosure of Material Proposed Transactions
During the year under review there were no material 
proposed transactions entered in to by Galle Face Capital 

Assets base of the Company other than those disclosed 
in the Note No. 24 to this Annual Report.
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Audit Committee

The Board has established an Audit Committee which has 
oversight responsibility for financial reporting system of the 
Company considering how they should select and apply 
accounting policies, financial reporting, establish internal 
controls and maintain an appropriate relationship with the 
External Auditors.

The Members of the Audit Committee consist of Indepen-
dent Non-executive Directors who are appointed by and 
responsible to the Board of Directors. The Executive Director 

-
tion. Other members of the Board, members of the Manage-
ment as well as External Auditors were present when 
required. The Company Secretary serves as Secretary to the 
Committee.

The Audit Committee reviews the Accounting Policies and 
presentation for external audit function and ensures that 
the objectives and professional relationships are maintained 
with the External Auditors. Also Audit Committee reviews 
and assists the Board in maintaining a sound system of 
internal control.

The Committee has full access to the External Auditors who, 
in turn, have access at all times to the Chairman of the 
Committee. The Committee meets with the External 
Auditors without any executive Directors present at least 
once a year, in line with good Corporate Governance Practice.

The Report of the Audit Committee is present on pages No. 
35 to 36 and the duties of the Audit Committee are included 
therein.

Related Party Transactions Review Committee
The objective of the Committee is to exercise oversight on 
behalf of the Board of Galle Face Capital Partners PLC and its 
listed associate Companies, to ensure compliance with the 
Code on Related Party Transactions, as issued by the Securi-
ties and Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka (“The Code”) and 
with the Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange (CSE). 
The Committee has also adopted best practices as recom-
mended by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri 
Lanka and the CSE. 

 
 

The Related Party Transactions Review Committee 
consists of three Independent Non-Executive Directors 
who are appointed by and responsible to the Board.

-
ed the meetings by invitation and the Company Secretar-
ies serve as Secretaries to the Committee.

The Report of the RPTR Committee is presented on 
pages No. 37 to 38 and the duties of the Committee are 
included therein.

Remuneration Committee

Nomination & Governance Committee

The Committee objective is to define and establishes the 
nomination process for Non-Executive Directors, lead the 
process of Board appointments and make recommenda-
tions to the Board. The Committee sets out the scope 
comprising tasks such as assessing skills required to be 
on the Board, periodic review of the extent of skills 
required to represent the Board, Review the clear descrip-
tion of role and capabilities required for a particular Board 
appointment and Identify and recommend suitable 
candidates to the Board. 

All three directors in the Nomination & Governance 
Committee are Non- Executive  and all are Independent.

The Report of the Nomination & Governance Committee 
is presented on page No. 39 and the duties of the 
Committee are included therein.

Galle Face Capital Partners PLC  2025 21

The Remuneration Committee determines the remunera-
tion of the Chairman and the Executive Directors and sets 
guidelines for the remuneration of the key management 
sta� within the Group. 

The Remuneration ommittee consists of three Directors  
who all are  independent and Non-Executive. The Compa-
ny Secretaries serve as Secretaries to the Committee. 

The Report of the Remuneration Committee is presented
on page No. 40 and the duties of the Remuneration
Committee are included therein.
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Institutional Investors
The Shareholders are provided with Interim Financial 
Statements and Audited Financial Statements together 
with Annual Report which contains the periodic/ annual 
performance of the Company and its Associate Compa-
nies. This information is available in the web site of 
Colombo Stock Exchange. Further Board of Directors 
ensures that Shareholders are given a fair chance to 
communicate at the Annual General Meeting and clarify 
any information relating to the Company. Board also 
encourages discussions of a high level on the strategic 
decisions and achievement of goals of the Company at 
the Annual General Meeting. Further the Board dissemi-
nates any information which is price sensitive to the 
shareholders by announcing to the Colombo Stock 
Exchange.

Other Investors
The Board expects any investor to carry out analysis on 
the information published in the Colombo Stock 
Exchange web site and to seek independent advice on 
their investment decisions to invest or divest the shares.

Information Technology Governance
The Board is vigilant on the impact of the technology 
towards the business. The Board is concerned about the 
threat and the need for the management of IT and Cyber 

Group is entrusted with formulation of the Group Infor-
mation Technology policy and Information Security 
Policy.

Management of IT and Cyber security is reviewed at 
monthly meetings with Directors and they are informed 
of any risks, issues and precautionary.

Compliance Summary
Statement of compliance under Section 7.6 of the Listing 

Shareholder Relations

Rules of Colombo Stock Exchange on Annual Report 
disclosures.

Corporate Governance Compliance Statement
Galle Face Capital Partners PLC has fully complied with 
the Corporate Governance listing requirements of the 

regulating authorities including,

• Companies Act No.7 of 2007
• Code of Best Practices on Corporate Governance issued   
  jointly by the CA Sri Lanka and the Securities & Exchange 
  Commission of Sri Lanka
• Inland Revenue Act
• Foreign Exchange Act

The company assign a high priority to the communication 
of the results and prospects for the future to its share-
holders as a responsible listed company on the Colombo 
Stock Exchange. The quarterly and Annual Reports are 
simultaneously updated on the companies website 
www.renukagroup.com.

If you have any question on accessing of the digital copy 
of this report, please call 0112 314750, company secretar-
ies. 
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CSE Rule 
Reference Corporate Governance Principles Compliance 

Status Company’s Extent of Adoption

(i)
Names of persons who were Directors of the 
entity

Complied
Refer Report of the Board of Directors 
Report on pages No. 10 to 15 to this 
Annual Report.

(ii)
Principal activities of the entity during the year 
and any changes therein

Complied
Refer Note No. 1 to Financial 
Statements.

(iii)
The names and the No. of shares held by the 
20 largest holders of voting shares and the 
percentage of such shares held

Complied
Refer Shareholders’ and Investors’ 
information on pages No. 75 to 77  to this 
Annual Report.

(iv) The public holding percentage Complied
Refer Shareholders details on pages No. 
75 to 77 to this Annual Report

(v)
A Statement of each Director ’s holding and Chief 

at the beginning and end of each Financial year
Complied Refer pages No.10 to 15 to this Annual

Report

(vi)
Information pertaining to material foreseeable 
risk factors of the Entity

Complied
Refer Report on the Risk management 
on pages No. 31 to 34 to this Annual 
Report.

(vii)
Details of material issues pertaining to 
employees and industrial relation of the Entity

Not 
Applicable

There are no employees in the Company.

(viii)
Extent, Locations, Valuations and the number 
of buildings of the Entity’s land holding and 
investment properties

Not 
Applicable

(ix)
Number of shares representing the Entity’s 
Stated Capital

Complied
Refer Page No. 75 to 77 Shareholders
Informations

(x)
A distribution schedule of the number of 
holders in each class of equity securities and the 
percentage of their total holdings

Complied
Refer Shareholders’ and Investors’ 
information on page No. 75 to 77 to this 
Annual Report.

(xi) Financial ratios and market price information Complied
Refer Five year summary given on page 
No. 74 to this Annual Report.

(xii)

Significant change in the Company’s fixed assets 

substantially from the book value as at the end 
of the year

Not 
Applicable

(xiii)
Details of funds raised through a public issue, 
rights issue and a private placement during the 
year 

Not 
Applicable

(xiv)
Information in respect of Employee Share 
Ownership or Stock Option scheme

Not 
Applicable
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Report on the Corporate Governance Contd..

CSE Rule 
Reference Corporate Governance Principles Compliance 

Status Company’s Extent of Adoption

(xv)
Disclosures pertaining to Corporate Governance 
practices in terms of Rules 7.10.3, 7.10.5 c. and 
7.10.6.c. of Section 7 of the Listing Rules

Complied
Refer Report on the Corporate 
Governance on page No. 17 to 28 to this 
Annual Report.

(xvi)

Related Party Transactions exceeding 10 percent 
of the equity or 5 percent of the total assets of 
the entity as per Audited Financial Statements, 
which ever is lower.

Complied
Refer Note No. 21 to Financial 
Statements.

9.1.3 COMPLIANCE

a./b./c.
Compliance   with   Corporate   Governance
Rules Complied

This report declares the confirmation 
on compliance and refer Page No. 
22 for “Corporate Governance 
Compliance Statement”.

 

9.19.1 NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (NED)

a.
At least 2 members or 1/3 of the Board, whichever 
is higher should be NEDs

Complied
Four  out of five  Directors are Non- 
Executive Directors.

The Total number of Directors is to be calculated 
based on the number as at the conclusion of the 
immediately preceding Annual General Meeting

Complied
Calculation is based on number as at the 
conclusion of the immediately preceding 
Annual General Meeting.

b.
Any change occurring to this ratio shall be 
rectified within ninety (90) days from the date of 
the change

Not
Applicable

9.19.2 INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

a.
2 or 1/3 of NEDs, whichever is higher shall be 
‘Independent’

Complied
Four Non-Executive Directors are 
independent out of Five.

b.
Each NED to submit a signed and dated 
declaration annually of his/her independence or 
non-independence

Complied
All Non-Executive Independent Directors 
have submitted their conformation on 
independence.

9.19.3 DISCLOSURES RELATING TO DIRECTORS

a./b.
Board shall annually determine the 
independence or otherwise of NEDs

Complied
The Board assessed the independence 
declared by Directors and determined 
the Directors who are independent.

c.
A brief resume of each Director should be included 
in the Annual Report including the Directors’ 
experience

Complied
Refer pages No. 05 for a brief resume of 
each Director.

d. Provide a resume of new Directors appointed to 
the Board along with details Complied

Refer pages No. 05 for a brief resume of 
each Director.

Compliance Summary Contd...
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Report on the Corporate Governance Contd..

CSE Rule 
Reference Corporate Governance Principles Compliance 

Status Company’s Extent of Adoption

9.19.4 CRITERIA FOR DEFINING INDEPENDENCE

a. - h.
Requirements for meeting the criteria to be an 
Independent Director

Complied

As per 9.19.2 a & b in determining of the 
independence or otherwise of NEDs, 
Board reviewed the criteria for defining 
independence as per 9.19.4 a to h

9.19.5 REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

a.1
Remuneration Committee shall comprise of 
NEDs, a majority of whom will be independent

Complied
The Remuneration Committee comprises 
of 3 Non-Executive Directors of all are 
Independent.

a.2
One Non-Executive Director shall be appointed 
as Chairman of the Committee by the Board of 
Directors

Complied
Refer page No. 40 for Chairman of 
Remuneration Committee.

b.
Remuneration Committee shall recommend 
the remuneration of the CEO and the Executive 
Directors

Complied
Refer page No 40 for Remuneration 
Committee scope.

c.1 Names of Remuneration Committee members Complied
Refer page No. 40 for names of the 
Committee members.

c.2 Statement of Remuneration policy Complied Refer pages No. 40.

c.3 Aggregate remuneration paid to EDs and NEDs Complied
Refer to Note No. 15 of the Financial 
Statements.

9.19.6 AUDIT COMMITTEE

a.1
Audit Committee shall comprise of NEDs,or a 
majority of whom should be independent

Complied
The Audit Committee comprises of three 
Non-Executive Directors which three are 
independent.

a.2 A NED shall be the Chairman of the Committee Complied
The Chairman of the Committee is an 
Independent Non-Executive Director.

a.3
CEO and CFO should attend Audit Committee 
meetings

Complied
Refer pages No. 35 to 36 of the Report of 
Audit Committee.

a.4
The Chairman of the Audit Committee or one 
member should be a member of a professional 
accounting body

Complied
One member of the Audit Committee is a 

b. Functions of the Audit Committee

b.1
Overseeing of the preparation, presentation and 
adequacy of disclosure in the financial statements

Complied
Refer pages No. 35 to 36 for Audit 
Committee Report.

b.2
Overseeing the compliance with financial reporting 
requirements, information requirements as per 
the laws and regulations

Complied
Refer pages No. 35 to 36 for Audit 
Committee Report.

Compliance Summary Contd...

Fellow Member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka.
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CSE Rule 
Reference Corporate Governance Principles Compliance 

Status Company’s Extent of Adoption

b.3
Ensuring the internal controls and risk 
management are adequate to meet the 
requirements of the SLFRS/LKAS

Complied
Refer pages No. 35 to 36 for Audit 
Committee Report.

b.4
Assessment of the independence and 
performance of the Entity’s External Auditors

Complied
Refer pages No. 35 to 36 for Audit 
Committee Report.

b.5

Make recommendations to the Board pertaining 
to appointment, re- appointment and removal 
of External Auditors and to approve the 
remuneration and terms of engagement of the 
External Auditors.

Complied
Refer pages No. 35 to 36 for Audit 
Committee Report.

c.1
Names of the Audit Committee members shall 
be disclosed

Complied
Refer pages No. 35 to 36 for Audit 
Committee Report.

c.2
Audit Committee shall make a determination of 
the independence of the external Auditors

Complied
Refer pages No. 35 to 36 for Audit 
Committee Report.

c.3
Report on the manner in which Audit Committee 
carried out its functions

Complied
Refer pages No. 35 to 36 for Audit 
Committee Report.

9.14
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS REVIEW 
COMMITTEE (RPTR)

9.14.1

Reviewing of Related Party Transactions except 
the transactions  mentioned  under  rule  No.  9.14.10 
should be carried out by the Committee prior to 
entering or completion of the transaction

Complied Refer pages No. 37 to 38 for Audit
Committee Report.

Refer pages No. 37 to 38 for Audit
Committee Report.

Refer pages No. 37 to 38 for Audit
Committee Report.

Refer pages No. 37 to 38 for Audit
Committee Report.

9.14.2

The Committee should comprise a combination 
of non-executive directors and independent 
non-executive directors. The composition of 
the Committee may also include executive 
directors, at  the  option of the Listed Entity. 
One independent non- executive director shall be 
appointed as Chairman of the Committee.

Complied

9.2.3
Holding Company RPT Committee to function as 
the RPT Committee of subsidiaries

Complied

9.2.4 Frequency of Meetings Complied

Compliance Summary Contd...
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CSE Rule 
Reference Corporate Governance Principles Compliance 

Status Company’s Extent of Adoption

9.14.8

9.14.7(1)

RPTR COMMITTEE DISCLOSURE IN THE 
ANNUAL REPORT

Immediate Disclosure

a) Any non-recurrent related Party transaction 
with a value exceeding 10 percent of the 
Equity or 5 percent of Total Assets which 
ever is lower, OR if the aggregate value of 
all non-recurrent Related Party Transactions 
entered in to with the same Related Party 
during the same Financial year amounts to 
10 percent of the equity or 5 percent of the 
Total assets of the Entity as per the latest 
Audited Financial Statements

b) Any subsequent Non-Recurrent Transaction 
after it exceeds 5 percent of Equity entered 
with the same related party

Complied
Refer Note No. 21 to Financial 
Statements.

(1)
Details pertaining to Non-Recurrent Related 
Party Transactions

Complied
Refer Note No. 21 to the Financial 
Statements.

(2)
Details pertaining to Recurrent Related Party 
Transactions

Complied
Refer Note No. 21 to the Financial 
Statements.

(3)
Report of the Related Party Transactions Review 
Committee

Complied
Refer pages No. 37 to 38 for Report of 
the Related Party Transactions Review 
Committee.

(4)

Declaration by the Board of Directors as an 

rules pertaining to Related Party Transactions, or 
a negative statement otherwise

Complied
Refer pages No. 37 to 38 for Report of 
the Related Party Transactions Review 
Committee.

Compliance Summary Contd...
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Below summary list the Company compliance with Companies Act No 7 of 2007  

Section Corporate Governance Principles
Compliance 
status Reference

168 (1) (a)
nature of the business of the Company 
together with any change thereof during 
the accounting period

Complied Refer Note No. 01 to the Financial 
Statements.

168 (1) (b) Signed Financial Statement of the 
Company for the accounting period 
completed

Complied Refer page No. 47 of this Annual Report.

168 (1) (c) Auditors Report on Financial Statements 
of the Company

Complied Refer pages No. 43 to 46 of this Annual 
Report.

168 (1) (d) Accounting Policies and any changes 
therein

Complied Refer Note No. 02 to the Financial 
Statements.

168 (1) (e) Particulars of the entries made in the 
Interests Register during the accounting 
period

Complied R
Annual Report.

efer page No. 10 to 16 of this

168 (1) (f) Remuneration and other benefits paid 
to Directors of the Company during the 
accounting period

Complied Refer Note No. 15 to the Financial 
Statements.

168 (1) (g) Corporate donations made by the 
Company during the accounting period

Complied Refer page No. 13 of this Annual Report.

168 (1) (h) Names of the Directors of the Company 
at the end of the accounting period and 
name of Directors who ceased to hold 

Complied Refer page No. 11 of this Annual Report.

168 (1) (i) Amounts paid/payable to the External 
Auditor as audit fees and fees for other 
services rendered during the accounting 
period

Complied Refer Note No. 15 to the Financial 
Statements.

168 (1) (j) Other relationships or any interest of 
Auditors with the Company.

Complied Refer pages No. 35 to 36 of the Audit 
Committee Report.

168 (1) (k) Acknowledgment of the content of this 
report and signature on behalf of the 
Board

Complied

Report on the Corporate Governance Contd..
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Refer pages No. 41 to 42 of the Annual 
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Galle Face Capital Partners PLC Sustainability Policy 
and Guidelines
Identify the stakeholders and rate them in line with the 
degree of influence and importance. Such stakeholders 
thus identified are,

 • Investors 
 • Key suppliers and business partners
 • Environment

Galle Face Capital Partners PLC has formulated 
sustainability strategies to create value for those 
identified stakeholders. We have created formal 
and informal channels in line with ultimate Group 

communication systems and engagement programs 
to involve our stakeholders and implement continuous 
monitoring systems through the management team in 
order to gauge our impact on the stakeholders.

Galle Face Capital Partners PLC has strive to ensure that 
all processes will not knowingly harm people and will 
minimize the negative impact our businesses will have 
on human life as well as environment.

Our Stakeholder Engagement Process 

Investors Support

Shareholder engagement is important to have access to 
growth capital and in turn provide a sound return to them. 
In meeting global challenges and evolving consumer 
needs we must be geared to be proactive with new ideas 
and investment opportunities and ready with the output 
as well. When we operate according to these principles 
the shareholders should realize a fair return.
 

Report on the Sustainability of the Company 

Overview

Impact on Economic Performance

Sustainability of the Company is the key element which is 
incorporated to the Corporate Governance frame work 

-
mentally responsible provision of services that deliver 
sustainability benefits which can leverage commercial 
advantage for the Company. Based on each stakeholder 
expectations and the company desire to deliver sustain-
able stakeholder values over time, the Company designed 
appropriate strategies to face the challenge of fulfilling 
stakeholder expectations.

The key business drives for sustainability are internal 
operations and stakeholder engagement. The first focuses 
on our internal operations and provision of our services 

helps us to reduce costs of supply of services and at the 
same time reduces our impact on the environment. The 
second approach focuses on our partnerships with our 
stakeholders. Stakeholders are any individual or party that 

build trust among our key stakeholders and to reach better 
understanding on a variety of issues. It can also pave the 
way for more successful solutions to problems, concerns 
and challenges.

In economic performance, the Company focused on opera-

tional excellence across all its business divisions and value 

addition to economic development. Operational excellence 

internal process, improvements to processes and reduces 

waste. Further investment in IT/ ERP helps measurement 

of operational results on time with increase accuracy.
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Report on the Sustainability of the Company Contd..

Method of Engagement

• We have open doors policy which enables 
shareholders to keep in contact, visit and obtain 
information from the Company Secretaries and 
engage in dialogue.

• Further e-mail address has been provided for 
comments and suggestions.

• Update with latest financials for shareholders/ 
investor to take rational decisions which is very 
important.

• We report company performance in timely and 
relevant manner through quarterly Financial Reports 
and Annual Report published in the Colombo Stock 
Exchange web site.

• We hold Annual General and Extra Ordinary 
meetings to communicate with our shareholders

Our Concern
Our concern is to increase the return on investment, 
sustainable profitability, good governance and 
transparency in carrying out group operations.
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Stake Holders / Investors

The Company uses its competencies and decades of 
experiences to identify the needs and wants of our Stake 
Holders in order to provide quality product and services
creating value-for-money.

Suppliers Support

Renuka Group considers engagement to be an increasing-
ly important component of its corporate citizenship strat-
egy. Our engagement e�orts help Renuka Group identify 
those issues that are most material to our business 
operations and shape our approach to addressing a range
of areas relating to the financial, social and environmen-
tal performance of the organization.



 

Report on the Risk Management
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Risk management is an integral component of our 
business operations. In today’s complex environment, 
organizations are required to make critical investment 
and operational decisions on a regular basis. Given the 
exposure to a wide range of risks—including economic, 
demographic, and political factors—proactive and struc-
tured risk management is essential to safeguard the 
Group’s long-term sustainability and performance.

Each business sector within the Group conducts periodic 
risk assessments relevant to their operations. These 
assessments are reviewed and discussed at Group 
management meetings to ensure alignment with broader 
strategic goals. Over time, we have refined our invest-
ment and operational decision-making processes to 
strike a balance between discipline and agility. This 
approach lays a strong foundation for embedding risk 
management into the fabric of our business, ensuring it is 
integrated into daily operations and strategic planning.

OUR APPROACH TO RISK MANAGEMENT
We define risk as the potential occurrence of an internal 
or external event that may adversely a�ect the Compa-
ny’s ability to achieve its strategic and operational objec-
tives. To e�ectively embed risk management across the 
organization, we follow a structured approach that 
integrates risk controls into our core systems and proce-
dures.

The process involves the following key steps:
- Identifying existing controls that are currently in opera-
tion
- Monitoring the e�ectiveness of those controls on an 
ongoing basis
- Refining and improving control mechanisms as needed 
based on evolving risk conditions
- Documenting evidence of risk mitigation e�orts and 
control e�ectiveness for accountability and audit readi-
ness

Galle Face Capital Partners PLC adopts the risk manage-
ment governance framework established by its ultimate 
parent company, Renuka Group. This ensures alignment 
across the Group while allowing for contextual adapta-
tions within individual business units.

KEY RISK CATEGORIES
Our risk management framework recognizes a broad 
spectrum of risk categories, including but not limited to:

Strategic Risks
These arise from poor or misaligned business strategies, 
market entry decisions, or failure to adapt to external 
changes. 
Mitigation: Strategic decisions are taken based on feasi-
bility reviews, board oversight, and market analysis. 
Internal audit and business performance teams evaluate 
the progress of key strategic initiatives.

Operational Risks
These relate to failures in internal processes, human 
error, equipment breakdown, or external disruptions. 
Mitigation: Operational controls are regularly reviewed by 
internal audit. Legal and compliance teams ensure adher-
ence to statutory requirements. Employee awareness and 
system improvements are promoted through operational 
heads.

Financial Risks
Includes credit, liquidity, interest rate, and foreign 
exchange exposures. 
Mitigation: Finance team monitors borrowing, liquidity 
positions, and exposure. Policies are reviewed regularly 
and additional disclosures are made in Note 22 to the 
Financial Statements.

Technology and Data Risk
As part of business digitization, risks associated with IT 
system failure, cyber security, and data protection are 
increasingly relevant. 
Mitigation: Basic controls and policies are in place. User 
access, data backup, and performance are periodically 
reviewed. Future alignment with PDPA is expected.

Environmental, Regulatory & ESG Risks
Environmental regulations, stakeholder expectations, 
and climate-related events pose long-term risks. 
Mitigation: The Group monitors compliance and 
integrates sustainability initiatives into its operations.

Robust systems, standard operating procedures, and 
defined responsibilities are in place to monitor and 
manage these risks. Functional heads, along with the 
Internal Audit team, play an active role in ensuring that 
risks are identified early, assessed thoroughly, and 
mitigated e�ectively within their respective domains.

ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS
Risk Identification, Prioritization, and Assessment
The first step in our risk management framework is the 
systematic identification of risks across all operational 
and strategic areas. At Ceylon Land & Equity PLC, risks 
are identified in consultation with key stakeholders, 
including departmental heads, internal auditors, and 
senior management.

We consider risk identification to be a foundational 
component of an e�ective Enterprise Risk Management 
(ERM) framework. Without a structured risk identifica-
tion process, the organization would be unable to recog-
nize or mitigate potential threats to its objectives.

Once risks are identified, they are evaluated based on two 
dimensions:
- Likelihood of occurrence
- Magnitude of impact on business objectives

This evaluation results in a prioritized risk register, 
helping management focus attention on the most critical 
risks that require immediate or strategic mitigation 
e�orts.
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This matrix enables management to:
- Visualize and rank risks objectively

- Determine suitable risk responses
(e.g., mitigation, transfer, avoidance, or acceptance)

The prioritized risk list developed through this process 
becomes the basis for ongoing monitoring, reporting, and 
action planning within the organization’s risk governance 
framework.

DEVELOPING A RISK
MANAGEMENT STRATEGY
Our risk management strategies define how the Group 
evaluates and responds to risk in a manner that is trans-
parent, objective, and aligned with both operational and 
investment decision-making.

A structured risk mapping process has been embedded 
into our risk management framework to ensure appropri-
ate responses are selected based on the level of risk expo-

strategy to address each identified risk.

Typical risk response strategies include:

The risk management process in place ensures the clear 
allocation and segregation of responsibilities for risk 
identification, assessment, mitigation, monitoring, and 
reporting. Multiple layers of oversight have been imple-
mented through policies, procedures, and internal control 

across the organization.

We continue to strengthen our risk governance by 
integrating process improvements and system enhance-
ments that enable real-time visibility and tracking of 
critical risks.

The main categories of risks that we take into account in 
the pursuit of our business objectives are outlined below.
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Risk Category Potential Impact Risk Management Strategies

Galle Face Capital Partners PLC  2025

Reputational damage and brand dilution 
due to competitive pressures.

Inability to obtain timely and accurate 
information due to IT system failures.

Disruption to operations and potential 
financial loss.

Strategic partnerships with a diverse 
supplier base allow for pricing flexibility and 
hedging against commodity price fluctua-
tions.

Continuous innovation in products and 
services, alongside service excellence and 
strong brand equity, help mitigate threats 
from existing and new competitors.

Comprehensive Group-wide IT policy and 
infrastructure controls.

Centralized IT division ensures robust 
support and continuity.
Data security protocols, service provider 
engagement, and business continuity plans 
implemented.

STRATEGIC RISKS;

Investment 
Decision Risk

Market & 
Regulatory Shifts

Reputation Risk

Legal action, fines, and penalties from 
non-compliance with statutory obliga-
tions.

Negative reputational impact.

Central legal department ensures adher-
ence to statutory and regulatory frame-
works, both local and international.

Proactive legal risk identification and 
engagement of local legal counsel in foreign 
jurisdictions.

Compliance with CSE and SEC regulations 
(applicable to listed companies).

Robust internal audit processes conducted 
by the corporate audit department and 
business-level management reviews.

Reporting systems ensure timely identifi-
cation and mitigation of risks.
Segregation of duties, sta� training, and 
assignment of responsibilities to compe-
tent personnel.

OPERATIONAL RISKS;

Legal & Regulatory 
Compliance

Internal 
Control Failures

KEY RISK CATEGORIES AND MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES

33



 

Report on the Risk Management Contd..

Galle Face Capital Partners PLC  2025

Risk Category Potential Impact Risk Management Strategies

Liquidity shortfalls.

Exposure to interest rate and currency 
fluctuations.

Risk of customer defaults impacting 
financial stability.

Comprehensive treasury and liquidity 
management practices.

Risk forecasting and hedging tools in place.

Maintenance of diversified funding sources.

Financial risk management policies 
disclosed in Note No. 25 of the Financial 
Statements.

FINANCIAL RISKS

Cybersecurity threats and data breaches.

IT infrastructure vulnerabilities leading to 
operational disruptions and regulatory 
breaches.

Loss of data, resources, and productivity.

Increased fraud risk and operational 
disruptions.

Inability to monitor performance against 
budgets and forecasts.

Strengthened IT governance and system 
resilience.

Group-wide cybersecurity protocols and 
user access controls.

Personal Data Protection Act (PDPA) readi-
ness initiatives.

Centralized IT support and employee 
awareness programs.

TECHNOLOGY & 
DATA RISKS

Non-compliance with environmental 
standards leading to regulatory fines and 
reputational damage.

Potential ESG rating downgrades.

Stakeholder dissatisfaction impacting 
business continuity.

Regular safety, environmental, and 
sustainability audits.

Integration of ESG principles into core 
business operations.

Transparent sustainability reporting 
aligned with global benchmarks.

Proactive alignment with both local and 
international regulations.

ENVIRONMENTAL, 
REGULATORY & 
ESG RISKS
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Report  of the Audit Committee

Mr. M. R. Ratnasabapathy*

*Mr. M. R. Ratnasabapathy appointed on 
27th September 2024.

Mr. K. G Vairavanathan

Mr. M.S Dominic

3

4

4

3/3

4/4

3/4

Name of Director
Eligible to

Attend
Attend
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The Committee comprised of following members as at 
31st March 2025.

Mr. M. R. Ratnasabapathy (Chairman)
(Independent Non-Executive Director)   
                                  
Mr. K.G Vairavanathan
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

Mr. M.S Dominic
(Indenedent Non-Executive Director)

Brief profiles of each member are given on page 4 of this 
Annual Report. Their individual and collective financial 
knowledge and business acumen and the independence 
of the Committee are brought to bear on their delibera-
tions and judgments on the matters that come within the 
Committee’s purview.

AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS
The committee has met 4 times during the year under 
review on a quarterly basis in compliance with the listing 
rules. The attendance of the members of Audit Commit-
tee meeting is stated in the table below.

The Board appointed the Audit Committee to be in line 
with the Code of the Best Practice on Corporate Gover- 
nance and the requirement ofthe Securities and 
Exchange Commission for Public Listed Companies. The 
Audit committee functions, authority and duties have 
been clearly identified in the Audit Committee Charter.

ROLE OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
The board of directors has stipulated the following areas 
to be over seen by the committee,

COMPOSITION OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee consists of three non executive 
independent directors, are appointed by and are responsi-
ble to the Board of Directors.

Assisting the board in discharging its responsibilities 
by satisfying the board oversight responsibilities in 
relation to quality and integrity of the financial 
statements of the company by overseeing of the 
presentation and adequacy of information require-
ments in the financial statements in keeping with 
companies act ,SEC Act & any other relevant regula-
tions.

Review quarterly results and year end financial prior 
to tabling for approval of the board of directors.
*The overall responsibility in ensuring that the inter-
nal control system and risk management systems of 
the company are adequate by overseeing the process 
to ensure that internal controls and risk manage-
ment are adequate and in compliance with regulato-
ry requirements.

Asses the independence,qualification of external 
auditors ,and recommending to the board appoint-
ment,reappointment external auditors      
The Audit Committee also reviews the nature and 
extent of non-audit services provided by the auditors 
to ensure that auditors are able to maintain objectiv-
ity and ndepen- dence.

Discussion of the audit plan,key audit issue and their 
resolution by way of management responses.

�

�

�

�
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Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Audit 
Committee. The Executive Director and Chief Financial 

-
bers of the Board, Management members as well as 
External Auditors were presented when required.

Charter of the Audit Committee
“Rules on Corporate Governance” under the listing rules 
of Colombo Stock Exchange and “Code of Best Practice on 
Corporate Governance” issued jointly by Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and the Securities 
and Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka are followed.

Functions of the Audit Committee
The proceedings of the Audit Committee are regularly 
reported to the Board of Directors.

Controls and Risks
-

ness of the Company’s system of Internal Control. The 
Committee also assessed the major business and control 
risks and the control environment prevalent in the 
Company and advised the Board on action to be taken 
where weaknesses were observed. The Audit Committee 
is satisfied that the Company’s accounting policies and 
operational controls provide reasonable assurance that 

company policies and that Company assets are properly 
accounted for and adequately safeguarded.

External Audit
The Committee met with the External Auditors in relation 
to the scope of the audit and also to discuss the Key 
Findings at the conclusion of the Audit.

The Committee reviewed the Audited Financial State-
ments with the External Auditors who are responsible to 
express an opinion on its conformity with the Sri Lanka 
Accounting Standards. The External Auditors kept the 
Audit Committee advised on an on-going basis regarding 
any unresolved matters of significance.

The Audit Committee undertook the evaluation of the 
independence and objectivity of the external auditor and 

Committee is aware, Auditors do not have any relation-
ship (other than of Auditors) with the Company.

Conclusion
The Audit Committee is satisfied that the internal 
controls and procedures in place for assessing and 
managing risks are adequately designed and operate 

assurance that the Company’s assets are safeguarded 
and that the financial statements of the Company are 
reliable. The Company’s External Auditors have been 

Sgd.
M. R. Ratnasabapathy
Chairman
31st July 2025
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In addition, as required by the Company’s Act No 07 of 
2007, the Committee has received a declaration from 
Messrs. Ernst & Young confirming that they do not have 
any relationship with the Company, which may have a 
bearing on their independence.



Report of Related Party Transactions Review Committee

NAME OF DIRECTOR
ELIGIBLE TO 

ATTEND
ATTENDED

Mr. M.R Ratnasabapathy*

Mr. M. S. Dominic

Dr. K.Liyanagamage

3 3/3 

4 3/4 

4 4/4 

Related Party Transactions Review Committee Meetings 
The Committee has met four times during the year under 
review on quarterly basis in compliance with continuous
listing rule of the CSE. The attendance of the members of
Committee meeting is stated in the table below.

Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Related 

*Mr. M.R Rathnasabapathay was appointed to the 
committee 27th September 2024.

Party Transactions Review Committee. The Executive 

meetings by invitation.

Composition of the Related Party Transactions Review 
Committee (RPTR)
The committee comprises three Independent Non execu-
tive Directors who are appointed by and responsible to the 
Board of Directors.

The Committee comprised of following members as at 
31st March 2025.

Mr. M.R Ratnasabapathy – Chairman 
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

Mr. M. S. Dominic
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

Mr.K.G Vairavanathan
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

Brief profiles of each members are given below.

The Related Party Transactions Review Committee 
(RPTR) was constituted with an objective of keeping in 
line with the Code of Best Practice on Corporate Gover-
nance and the requirement of the Securities and 
Exchange Commission with a view to ensure that the 
interests of shareholders as a whole are taken into 
account by Galle Face Capital Partners PLC and are consistent 
with the Code when entering into Related Party Transac-
tions and made required disclosures in a timely manner. 
The committee has also adopted the Best Practices as 
recommended by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of Sri Lanka and Colombo Stock Exchange.

Galle Face Capital Partners PLC  2025

Brief profiles of each member are given on page 5 of this 
Annual Report. Their individual and collective financial 
knowledge and business acumen and the independence 
of the Committee are brought to bear on their delibera-
tions and judgments on the matters that come within the 
Committee’s purview.
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Report of Related Party Transactions Review Committee Contd..

Task of the Committee
The Committee reviewed the related party transaction 
presented to them by the management and their compli-
ance in Galle Face Capital Partners   PLC and communicat-
ed the same to the Board of Directors.

The Board of Directors declared that no RPT falling within 
the scope of the Code was entered into by the Company 
during the financial year 2024/2025 other than discuss in 
Note No. 21 to the Financial Statements.

Sgd.
M.R Ratnasabapathy
Chairman
31st July 2025

Establishing and defining the threshold values of 
each listed related party transaction as per the Code 
which require discussion in detail and disclose.

Identifying related party transactions that need 
pre-approval from the Board of Directors and need 
immediate market disclosure. And identify transac-
tions that need shareholder approval and disclosure 
in the Annual Report.

Formulating a standard template to implement to all 
listed subsidiaries in the Group to follow when docu-
menting RPT when presenting to RPTR Committee.

Establishing proper guide lines to identify recurrent & 
non-recurrent Related party transactions to review 
economic and commercial substance of the related 
party transaction.

Establishing a method of having access to adequate 
knowledge or expertise to assess all aspects of 
proposed related party transactions where necessary 
and procedure for obtaining appropriate professional 
and expert advice from appropriately qualified 
persons.

Policies and procedures of Related Party
Transactions Review Committee

•

•

•

•

•

Providing guidelines which senior management must 
follow dealing with related parties.

Quarterly review to ensure that adequate disclosures 
have been done in the market or Annual Report as 
required by the Code.

The Committee communicates its comments/ obser-
vations to the Board of Directors after each review of 
related party transactions.

•

•

•
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Report of the 

NAME OF DIRECTORS
ELIGIBLE TO 

ATTEND
ATTENDED

Mr. M.S. Dominic
(Chairman)

1 1/1

Mr. K.G Vairavanathan
Mr. M.R Ratnasabapathy

1 1/1

1 1/1

The directives of the Committee are,

•

•

•

 

The Scope of the Committee is;

Sgd. 
M.S.Dominic 
Chairman
31st July 2025

To define and establish the nomination process 
for Non-Executive Directors,
Lead the process of Board appointments and 
make recommendations to the Board.
The Committee scope out the tasks such as assess 
skills required to be on the Board.
Periodic review of the extent of skills required 
which are represent on the Board.
Review description of role and capabilities 
required for a particular Board appointment and 
Identify and recommend suitable candidate to the 
Board.

•

•

•

•

•

 

Nomination & Governance Committee

Galle Face Capital Partners PLC  2025

The Nomination & Governance Committee of Galle Face 
Capital Partners PLC as at 31st March 2025 consisted of 
independent three Non- Executive Directors . 

Members of the Nomination & Governance Committee 
Mr. M. S. Dominic - Chairman
(Independent Non-Executive) 

Mr. M.R Ratnasabapathy
(Independent Non-Executive) 

Mr.K.G Vairavanathan 
(Independent Non Executive Director).

Brief profiles of Mr. M.S Dominic, Mr. M. R.Ratnasabapa-
thy & Mr.K.G Vairavanathan are given on page No 5.

Attendance of Nomination & 
Governance Committee Meetings

During the financial year under review, the Committee had 
met once, with all members in attendance. The attend-
ances of the meetings are given below.

To identify suitable persons who could be consid- 
ered to become Board member as a Non- Executive 
Director.
To recommend to the Board the process of selec- 
tion of Chairman and Deputy Chairman
Make necessary recommendation to the board as 
and when needed by the Board
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Report of the Remuneration Committee

NAME OF DIRECTORS
ELIGIBLE TO 

ATTEND
ATTENDED

Mr. M. S. Dominic 1 1/1

1 1/1

1 1/1

Independence of the Committee
The committee is independent from the management of 
the business and not involve in any business operations.

The scope of the Committee

• The committee study and recommends 
the remuneration policy of Directors & Key 
Management Personnel.

• Review the performances of Key Management 
personnel on periodic basis.

• The Committee recommends the remuneration 
based on the prevailing market rates and 
perquisites applicable to the Key Management 
personnel of the Company and makes appropriate 
recommendations to the Board of Directors for 
Approval.

• The Committee also carries out periodic reviews 
to ensure that the remunerations are in line with 
market conditions.

The Remuneration Policy is to attract and retain best 
professional managerial talent within the Renuka Group 
and also to motivate and encourage them to perform at 
the highest possible level. The Group has a structure and 
professional methodology in evaluate the performance 
of employees. The policy ensure equally and fairness 
between the various employees is maintained.

Activities during Financial Year 2024/2025
The Remuneration Committee reviewed the remuneration 
policy for Key Management Personnel and was satisfied 
that the existing framework was satisfactory. The total 
sum that was paid as Directors Remunerations in the 
year under review is set out in Note 18 to the Financial 
Statements.

Sgd.
M.S. Dominic
Chairman
31st July 2025

Composition of the Committee
The committee consists of three non-executive directors 
who are independent. The members of the committee 
have wide experience and knowledge of the business 
industry we are engage in.

Members of Remuneration Committee 

Remuneration Committee Meeting Attendance

The Committee met once during the financial year under 
review. Attendances of the directors in such meetings are 
given below.

Galle Face Capital Partners PLC  2025

M. S. Dominic - Chairman
(Independent Non- Executive)

Mr. M.R Ratnasabapathy
(Independent Non-Executive)

Mr.K.G Vairavanathan
(Independent Non-Executive)

The brief profiles of Mr. M.S.Dominic, Mr. M.R Ratnasa-
bapathy and Mr.K.G Vairavanathan are given on page No 5 
of this Annual Report.

Mr. K.G Vairavanathan

Mr. M.R Ratnasabapathy
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibility

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for 
preparation and presentation of Financial Statements for 
the year ended 31st March 2025 in accordance with the 
requirements of the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, the 
Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange and the 
Companies Act No. 7 of 2007.

As per the provisions of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007, 
the Directors are required to prepare Financial State-
ments, for each financial year and presented before a 
General Meeting comprising:

The Board of Directors are of the view that prevailing 
Corporate Governance frame, Internal Control systems, 
risk management policies established in the Company 
ensure that there are reasonable assurance that all assets 
are safeguard and all transactions are properly authorized 
by the management and recorded on time, hence any 
material misstatements or irregularities are prevented or 
bring to the notice of the management within a reason-
able time.

A statement of Income and Statement of Compre-
hensive Income of the Company which present a true 
and fair view of the profit or loss of the Company for 
the financial year

A Statement of Financial Position, which presents a 
-

ny as at the end of the financial year together with 
explanatory notes to the Financial Statements

A statement of changes in Equity which presents a 
true and fair view of the changes in the Company ’s 
retained earnings for the financial year

A Cash Flow Statement which presents a true and fair 
view of the flow of cash in and out of the Company for 
the financial year; and notes to the Financial State-
ments and which comply with the requirements of 
the Act.

a.

b.

c.

d.

The appropriate accounting policies have been select-
ed and applied in a consistent manner, material 
deviations if any have been disclosed and explained;

All applicable Accounting Standards, in accordance 
with the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards 
(SLFRS/LKAS) as relevant have been applied.

Reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates 
have been made so that the form and substance of 
transactions properly reflected.

It provide the information required by and otherwise 
complies with the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007, 
Listing Rules of Colombo Stock Exchange and 
requirement of any other regulatory authority as 
applicable to the Company.

a.

b.

c.

d.

The Directors are of the view that, in preparing these 
Financial Statements:

Further the Directors have a responsibility to ensure that 

disclose, with reasonable accuracy of the financial 
position of the Company and also to reflect the transpar-
ency of transactions and to ensure that the Financial 
Statements presented comply with the requirements of 
the Companies Act.
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The External Auditors, Messrs. Ernst & Young, Chartered 
Accountants, who were deemed reappointed in terms of 
the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 were provided with 
every opportunity to undertake the inspections they 
considered appropriate to enable them to form their 
opinion the Financial Statements. The Report of the 
Auditors, shown on page 43-46 set out their responsibili-
ties in relation to the Financial Statements. The Directors 
are also of the view that the Company have adequate 
resources to continue in operations and have applied the 
going concern basis in preparing these Financial State-
ments.



As required by Companies Act, the Board of Directors has 
authorized distribution of the dividend now proposed, 
being satisfied based on information available to it that 

  hcus  retfa  tset  ycnevlos eht yfsitas dluow ynapmoC eht
distribution  in  accordance with the Section 57 of the 
Companies Act, and have obtained/sought in respect 
of the dividend now proposed, a certificate of solvency 
from the Auditors.

Compliance Report

The Directors confirm that to the best of their knowledge, 
all taxes, duties and levies payable by the company, all 
contributions, levies and taxes payable on behalf of the 
Company and all other known statutory dues as were 
due and payable by the company as at the reporting date 
have been paid or where relevant provided for.

By order of the Board

Sgd.
Renuka Enterprises (Pvt) Ltd
Managers and Company Secretaries
31st July 2025

Statement of Directors’ Responsibility Contd.. 
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Independent  Auditor’s Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THE GALLE FACE CAPITAL PARTNERS PLC
Report on the audit of the Financial Statements

Galle Face Capital Partners PLC  2025

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of The Galle 
Face Capital Partners PLC (“the Company”), which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 
March 2025, and the statement of profit or loss, state-
ment of comprehensive income, statement of changes in 
equity and statement of cash flows for the year then 
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including 
material accounting policy information.
  
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements of 
the Company give a true and fair view of the financial 
position of the Company as at 31 March 2025, and of their 
financial performance and cash flows for the year then 
ended in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Stand-
ards.

Basis for opinion
  
We conducted our audit in accordance with Sri Lanka 
Auditing Standards (SLAuSs). Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Compa-
ny in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants issued by CA Sri Lanka (Code of Ethics) and 
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics. We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained is su�cient and appro-
priate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Other Matter

The Financial statements of the company year ended 31 
March 2024 were audited by another auditor who 
expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements 
on 23 August 2024.

Key audit matters
  
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our profes-
sional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of 
the financial statements of the current period. These 
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our 
description of how our audit addressed the matter is 
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial 
statements section of our report, including in relation to 
these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the perfor-
mance of procedures designed to respond to our assess-
ment of the risks of material misstatement of the finan-
cial statements. The results of our audit procedures, 
including the procedures performed to address the 
matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on 
the accompanying financial statements.
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Independent  Auditor’s Report Contd..

Equity Instruments measured at Fair Value 
Through profit or loss (FTPL)

The company has equity instruments measured at 
fair value through profit or loss amounting to Rs. 
2,047 Mn as at the reporting date. These invest-
ments include listed shares of Rs. 2,047 Mn as 
reflected in Notes 3 and 3.1 to the financial state-
ments.

This was a Key Audit Matter due to the materiality 
of these investments which represented 93% of 
the Company’s total assets as of the reporting 
date. 

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Our audit procedures to address this area of 
focus included the following.

• Agreed valuation of listed shares to prices 
published in the Colombo Stock Exchange.
 
And
 
Obtained confrontations from Central Depository 
System on the number of shares held as of the 
reporting date.

We also assessed the adequacy of the disclosures 
made in Notes 3 and 3.1 in the financial statement.

HOW OUR AUDIT ADDRESSED THE KEY 
AUDIT MATTER
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Independent  Auditor’s Report Contd..

Galle Face Capital Partners PLC  2025

Other Information included in the Company’s 
2025 Annual Report

Other information consists of the information included in 
the Annual Report, other than the financial statements 
and our auditor’s report thereon. Management is respon-
sible for the other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover 
the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, 
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or 
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have 
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstate-
ment of this other information, we are required to report 
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.  

Responsibilities of the management and those 
charged with governance 
  
Management is responsible for the preparation of finan-
cial statements that give a true and fair view in accord-
ance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, and for such 
internal control as management determines is necessary 
to enable the preparation of financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error.  

In preparing the financial statements, management is 
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to contin-
ue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so.  

Those charged with governance are responsible for 
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of 
the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assur-
ance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with SLAuSs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individ-
ually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these financial statements.  

As part of an audit in accordance with SLAuSs, we 
exercise professional judgment and maintain profession-
al skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstate-
ment of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is su�cient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collu-
sion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresenta-
tions, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the e�ectiveness 
of the Company’s internal controls.  

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management.  
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Independent  Auditor’s Report Contd..

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (Continued..)

Galle Face Capital Partners PLC  2025

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s 
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a 
material uncertainty exists related to events or condi-
tions that may cast significant doubt on the Compa-
ny’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to 
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, 
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 
concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 
content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a 
statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on 
our independence, and where applicable, actions 
taken to eliminate threats or safeguard applied. 

From the matters communicated with those charged 
with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the financial 
statements of the current period and are therefore the 
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes 
public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 
matter should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public inter-
est benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements  

As required by section 163 (2) of the Companies Act 
No. 07 of 2007, we have obtained all the information 
and explanations that were required for the audit and, 
as far as appears from our examination, proper 
accounting records have been kept by the Company.

CA Sri Lanka membership number of the engagement 
partner responsible for signing this independent 
auditor’s report is 4169.  

31st July 2025
Colombo
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S. V. Rajiyah M.S. Dominic 
Director Director  

 31st July 2025
Colombo

Statement of Financial Position

AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2025
 Note Rs.

Assets
Non current assets

Investments in Associate
Total non current assets

Current assets

Amount due from related party
Trade and other receivables
Investments 

Income tax receivable
Total current assets
Total assets

Equity and liabilities
Equity
Stated capital
Retained earnings
Total equity

Current liabilities
Other payable
Income tax payable
Amount due to related party
Bank overdraft
Total current liabilities
Total equity and liabilities 

4

5
6

12

7

9
10

11
12
13

8.1

 146,375,000
 2,193,441,751

 -
 170,778

-

 3,198,630
 5,584,165

 2,199,025,916  1,303,763,896

 596,528,794
 1,358,498,162

  1,955,026,956  1,275,284,473 

 719,213
-

 243,279,746
-
  243,998,959

 2,199,025,916

2024
Rs.

-
Investments - Measured at fair value through profit or loss 3  2,047,066,751  1,268,433,716

 1,268,433,716

 38,395
 372,106

 24,307,328

-
 35,330,180

 542,775,948
  732,508,525

 

 860,002
 1,053,395
 6,473,132

 20,092,894
28,479,423

  1,303,763,896

 

 

The financial statements are to be read in conjunction with the related notes, which form an integral part of these 
financial statements of the Company.          
          
I certify that the Financial Statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act 
No. 7 of 2007.          
          
          

          
A.R.D. Perera

Sgd. Sgd.

Sgd.
          

          
The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these financial statements.  
Approved and signed for and on behalf of the Board of Directors.

Cash and cash equivalents 8  2,214,757  10,612,351
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Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH
Note

Revenue

Administrative expenses

Gain/(Loss) on Fair Value of Investments Measured at Fair Value Through 
Profit or Loss

Profit / (Loss) from operations

Finance income

Finance cost

Profit / (Loss) before tax

Taxation

Profit / (Loss) for the year

Other Comprehensive income /(Expenses) to be reclassified to 
Profit or loss in subsequent period

Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss

Other comprehensive income/ (expense) for the year

Total Comprehensive Income for the year

Earnings per share

Dividend per share

14

15

3

16.1

16.2

17

18

19.1

32,031,268

 (2,212,162)

 396,013,735

 
425,832,841

 29,721,337

 (23,708,335)

 431,845,843

   (1,140,252)

  430,705,591

 
-   

 -   

  430,705,591

 14.91

 

19.3  1.25

 78,264,218

 (2,927,731)

 612,908,182

 
 688,244,669

 1,978,046

 (7,296,002)

 682,926,713

 (1,690,552)

 681,236,161

 
-   

 -   

 681,236,161

 23.58

 2.05

The accounting policies and notes on pages 51 to 73 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

2025
Rs.

2024
Rs.
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Statement of Changes In Equity

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH Stated
Capital

General 
 Reserve

Retained
Earnings

Total

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Balance as at 31 March 2023

Scrip Dividend

Profit for the year

Balance as at 31 March 2024

 -   

 513,655,750

 29,120,198

 542,775,948

 618,803

 -   

 -   

 618,803

 333,476,391

 (32,292,260)

 430,705,591

 (3,172,062)

 430,705,591

 731,889,722

 847,750,944

 1,275,284,473

The accounting policies and notes on pages 51 to 73 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

Scrip Dividend

Profit for the year

Balance as at 31 March 2025

 -   

 53,752,846

  596,528,794 

 -   

 -   

 618,803

 (55,246,524)

 681,236,161 

 (1,493,678)

 681,236,161 

  1,357,879,359  1,955,026,956

Galle Face Capital Partners PLC  2025  49



Statement of Cash Flows

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH
2024
 Rs. 

2025
 Rs. 

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit/ (loss) before income tax expense

Adjustments for:
Finance income
Gain on Investments - Measured at Fair value Through Profit or Loss
Gain on Disposal of Shares
Finance cost
Operating (loss) / profit before working capital changes

Changes in working capital

Decrease / (Increase) in Investments

Decrease / (Increase) in Trade and other receivables
Decrease / (Increase) in amount due from related party
Increase / (Decrease) in other payables

Cash flows used in operating activities

WHT paid
Income tax paid

Net cash flows generated from / used in operating activities

Cash flows from Financing activities

Disposal of Shares

Investment in quoted shares
Interest received

Loan Obtained during the year from Related Companies
Loan & Interest settled  during the year from Related Companies

Net cash flows generated from/ (used in) in Financing activities

 682,926,713 

 (1,978,046)
 (612,908,182)

 7,296,002 
 50,590,813 

 (559,500,000)
 796,306,614 

 236,806,614 

 (24,745,674)

Disposal of treasury bill

Finance cost

 431,845,843

 (29,721,337)
 (396,013,735)

  23,708,335
  21,929,435

(96,914,112)

 2,763,187
 961,605
 267,917

 2,213,809

 (26,509,540)
 78,556,506 

 29,721,337

 571,700,000 
 (667,226,868)

 (95,526,868)

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Note 8.1)

The accounting policies and notes on pages 51  to 73 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

 11,695,300 
 (9,480,543)

 2,214,757 

 (16,970,362)
 7,489,819

 (9,480,543)

 (7,889,671)

 471,000,000

 (3,172,062)

 628,958,058

 (926,740,984)
Investment in associate -

(23,708,335)

 201,329 
 38,395 

 (140,789)
 (7,296,002)
 43,393,746

 -   
 24,307,328 

 487,648,875 
 (146,375,000)
 (628,628,054)

 1,978,046 
 (1,493,678)
 (5,942,577)

 (225,111,314)
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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

1.1. REPORTING ENTITY

 

1.2.   PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND NATURE OF
 OPERATIONS

 
 

 
1.3. ULTIMATE PARENT ENTERPRISES

 

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

 

 

 

2.3. FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

 

2.4. CHANGES IN MATERAIL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 

2.5. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

 

Notes To The Financial Statements

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a 
historical cost basis, except for the financial instru-
ments which have been measured at fair value.

The preparation and presentation of these Financial 
Statements is in compliance with the Companies Act 
No. 07 of 2007.

Consolidated Financial Statements have not been 
prepared for the current year since there were no  
subsidiaries  as  at 31st  March  2025.

2.2.

 

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements for the year ended 31st 
March 2025 are prepared in accordance with Sri 

-
tive for the periods beginning on or after 01st January 
2012.

The Company’s financial statements are presented 
in Sri Lankan Rupees, which is also the  company’s 
functional  currency.

The Company also adopted Disclosure of Accounting 
Policies  (Amendments to LKAS 1 and SLFRS 
Practice Statement 2)  from 1 April 2023. Although 
the amendments did not result  in any changes to 
the accounting policies themselves, they  impacted 
the accounting policy information disclosed in the  
Financial Statements. The amendments require the 
disclosure of ‘material’, rather  than ‘significant’, 
accounting policies. The amendments  also provide 
guidance on the application of materiality  to disclo-
sure of accounting policies, assisting entities to  
provide useful, entity-specific accounting policy 
information  that users need to understand other 
information in the Financial Statements. Manage-
ment reviewed the accounting  policies and made 
updates to the information disclosed  in Note 3 - 
Material accounting policies (2023: Significant 
accounting policies) in certain instances in line with 
the amendments.

Disclosures are made in respect of the transactions 
in which one party has the ability to control or 
exercise significant influence over the financial and 
operating policies or decisions of the other irrespec-
tive of whether price is being charged.

The Company is in the Business of investing and 
trading in debt, equity and other alternative asset 
classes.

The Statement of Financial Position, Income State-
ment and Statement of Comprehensive Income, 
Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow 
Statement, together with Notes to the Financial 
Statements (“Financial Statements”) of the Company 
as  at  31st  March 2025  and  for  the  year then ended, 
comply with the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards 
(SLFRSs/ LKASs) as laid down by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and the require-
ments of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007.

GALLE FACE CAPITAL PARTNERS PLC is a public 
limited liability Company incorporated and domiciled 
in Sri Lanka and listed on Colombo Stock Exchange. 

place of business is located at “RENUKA HOUSE”, 
No. 69, Sri Jinaratana Road, Colombo 02.

Galle Face Capital Partners PLC  2025

The Company’s  ultimate parent company is 
RENUKA HOLDINGS PLC As the Company's shares 
are widely held by subsidiary of Renuka Holding PLC
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2.6. EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING 
PERIOD

 
All material events occurring after the Reporting 
period have been considered and where necessary 
adjustments to or disclosure have been made in the 
Financial Statements.

2.7. GOING CONCERN

2.8. USE OF ESTIMATES & JUDGMENTS

2.9. MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 

 

2.10. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

 

Notes To The Financial Statements Cont..

The Management has made an assessment on the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and 
is satisfied that it has the resources to continue in 
business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, 
management is not aware of any material uncertain-
ties that may cast significant doubt upon the 
Companies’ ability to continue as a going concern.

The preparation of Financial Statements requires 
management to make judgments estimates and 

-
ing policies and the reported amounts of Assets, 
Liabilities, Income and Expenses. Actual results may 

-
ing assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in 
the period in which the estimate is revised and in any 

Transfer pricing regulation

The Company is subject to income taxes and other 
taxes including transfer pricing regulations. Prevail-
ing uncertainties with respect to the interpretation 
of respective transfer pricing regulations, necessitat-
ed using management judgment to determine the 
impact of transfer pricing regulations. Accordingly 
critical judgments and estimates were used in apply-
ing the regulations in aspects including but not 
limited to identifying associated undertakings, 
estimation of the respective arm’s length prices and 
selection of appropriate pricing mechanism. 

Management is responsible for the preparation and 
fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards.

This responsibility includes: designing, implement-
ing and maintaining internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial state-
ments that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying 
appropriate accounting policies; and making 
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the 
circumstances.

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash in 
hand, demand deposits and short-term highly liquid 
investments, readily convertible to known amounts 
of cash and subject to insignificant risk of changes in 
value.

For the purpose of Cash Flow Statement, Cash and 
Cash Equivalents consist of cash in hand and depos-
its in banks net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a 
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of 
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resourc-
es embodying economic benefits will be required to 
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the 
amount of the obligation can be made.

2.11. PROVISIONS

The current tax charge is subject to such judgments. 

and actual payable may arise as a result of manage-
ment’s interpretation and application of transfer 
pricing regulation.

Information about critical judgement in applying 
accounting policies that have the most significant 

statement is included in the following Note no. 22 - 
Contingent Liabilities.
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2.12. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

2.13. CONTINGENT ASSETS AND CONTINGENT 
LIABILITIES

 

2.14. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS-INITIAL RECOGNITION 
AND SUBSEQUENT MEASUREMENT

Notes To The Financial Statements Cont..

All material capital commitments and contingencies 
of the Company as at the Statement of Financial 
Position date are disclosed in the notes to the Finan-
cial Statements.

All contingent liabilities are disclosed as a note to the 
financial statements unless the outflow of resources 
is remote. Contingent assets are disclosed, where 
inflow of economic benefit is probable.

Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, 
as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair 
value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 
and fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable 
without a significant financing component) or finan-
cial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for 
an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A 
trade receivable without a significant financing 
component is initially measured at the transaction 
price.
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For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial 
assets are classified in four categories

 Financial assets at amortised cost (debt  
 instruments)
 Financial assets at fair value through Other  
 Comprehensive Income (OCI) with recycling  
 of cumulative gains and losses (debt instru- 
 ments)
 Financial assets designated at fair value  
 through OCI with no recycling of cumulative  
 gains and losses upon derecognition (equity  
 instruments)
 Financial assets at fair value through profit  
 or loss

Financial assets at amortized cost
(debt instruments)

 The Company measures financial assets at  
 amortised cost if both of the following  
 conditions are met: 
 The financial asset is held within a business  
 model with the objective to hold financial  
 assets in order to collect contractual cash  
 flows and
 The contractual terms of the financial asset  
 give rise on specified dates to cash flows  
 that are solely payments of principal and  
 interest on the principal amount outstand- 
 ing

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently 

and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are 
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is 
derecognised,   modified   or    impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI (debt 
instruments)

The Company measures debt instruments at fair 
value through OCI if both of the following conditions 
are met:

 The financial asset is held within a business  
 model with the objective of both holding to  
 collect contractual cash flows and selling  
 and
 The contractual terms of the financial asset 
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding

For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, 
interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and 
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the 
Statement of Profit or Loss and computed in the 
same manner as for financial assets measured at 
amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are 
recognised in OCI. Upon derecognition, the cumula-
tive fair value change recognised in OCI is recycled to 
profit or loss.

The Company does not classify any instrument under 
this category as of 31 March 2025.

Financial assets designated at fair value through 
OCI (equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect to 
classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity 
instruments designated at fair value through OCI 
when they meet the definition of equity under LKAS 
32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not 
held for trading. The classification is determined on 
an instrument-by instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never 
recycled to Statement of Profit or Loss.
Dividends are recognised as revenue in the State-
ment of Profit or Loss when the right of payment has 
been established, except when the Company 
benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of 
the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such 
gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments desig-
nated at fair value through OCI are not subject to 
impairment assessment.

The Company does not classify any instrument under 
this category as at 31st March 2025.

 Subsequent measurement

 

•

•

•

•
 

• 

•
 

 

 

Notes To The Financial Statements Cont..

• 

 

•
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Notes To The Financial Statements Cont..

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
include financial assets held for trading, financial 
assets designated upon initial recognition at fair 
value through profit or loss, or financial assets 
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value. 
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if 
they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repur-
chasing in the near term. Derivatives, including 
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified 
as held for trading unless they are designated as 

cash flows that are not solely payments of principal 
and interest are classified and measured at fair value 
through profit or loss, irrespective of the business 
model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instru-
ments to be classified at amortised cost or at fair 
value through OCI, as described above, debt instru-
ments may be designated at fair value through profit 
or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or 
significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
are carried in the Statement of Financial Position at 
fair value with net changes in fair value recognized in 
the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Derecoginition

A financial asset is derecognised when:
 The rights to receive cash flows from the  
 asset have expired.
 The Company has transferred its rights to 
receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an 
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full 
without material delay to a third party under a 
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either

       (a) the Company has transferred substantially 
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

       (b) the Company has neither transferred nor 
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the 
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to 
receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into 
a pass-through arrangement, and has neither trans-
ferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and 
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of it, the 
asset is recognised to the extent of the Company’s 
continuing involvement in it.

•

•

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recogni-
tion, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit 
or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as deriva-

-
tive hedge as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair 
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, 
carried at amortised cost. This includes directly 
attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and 
other payables.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on 
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at 
amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is 
classified as at FVTPL, if it is classified as held- 
for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as 
such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at 
FVPL are measured at fair value and net gains and 
losses, including any interest expense, are 
recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities 
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using 

foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in 
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also 
recognised in profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and 
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are 
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are 
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisa-
tion process.

 Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account 
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees 
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The 
EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the 
Statement of Profit or Loss. This category generally 
applies to interest bearing loans and borrowings.
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Derecognition

 

A financial liability is derecognised when the 
obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled 
or expired.

 

 

Financial assets and fi
and the net amount is reported in the Statement of 
Financial Position if there is a currently enforceable 

there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise 
the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

 

Notes To The Financial Statements Cont..

2.16 DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUE
 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell 

an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date.

The fair value measurement is based on the 
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or 
transfer the liability takes place either:

• in the principal market for the asset or liability 
or

• in the absence of a principal market, in the most 
advantageous market for the asset or liability.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is 
measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described 
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

• Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in 
active markets for identical assets or liabilities

• Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the 
lowest level input that is significant to the 
fair value measurement is directly or indirectly 
observable

• Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the 
lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement is unobservable
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2.15   IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
The Company recognises allowances for expected 
credit losses (ECLs) on financial assets measured at 
amortised cost.

Loss allowance for debt instruments is measured at 
12-month ECL unless credit risk (i.e. the risk of 
default occurring over the expected life of the finan-
cial instrument) of the debt instrument has not 
increased significantly since initial recognition.

When determining whether the credit risk of a 
financial asset has increased significantly since 
initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the 
Company considers reasonable and supportable 
information that is relevant and available without 
undue cost or e�ort. This includes both quantita-
tive and qualitative information and analysis, 
based on the Company’s historical experience and 
informed credit assessment and including 
forward-looking information.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in 
default when the borrower is unlikely to pay its 
credit obligations to the Company in full, without 
recourse by the Company to actions such as realis-
ing security (if any is held) Lifetime ECLs are the 
ECLs that result from all possible default events 
over the expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result 
from default events that are possible within the 12 
months after the reporting date (or a shorter period 
if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 
months).

The maximum period considered when estimating 
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which 
the Company is exposed to credit risk.

Measurement of ECLs
ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit 
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present 
value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the di�erence 
between the cash flows due to the entity in accord-
ance with the contract and the cash flows that the 
Company expects to receive).
ECLs are discounted at the e�ective interest rate of 
the financial asset.

Credit-impaired financial assets
At each reporting date, the Company assesses 
whether financial assets carried at amortised cost 
are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit- 
impaired’ when one or more events that have a 
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash 
flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the state-
ment of financial position
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at 
amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying 
amount of the assets.

Write-o�
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is 
written o� when the Company has no reasonable 
expectations of recovering a financial asset in its 
entirety or a portion thereof. The Company expects 
no significant recovery from the amount written 
o�. However, financial assets that are written o� 
could still be subject to enforcement activities in 
order to comply with the Company’s procedures to 
recovery of amounts due.
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Level 1

When available, the Company measures the fair 
value of an instrument using active quoted prices or 
dealer price quotations (assets and long positions are 
measured at a bid price; liabilities and short positions 
are measured at an asking price), without any 
deduction for transaction costs. A market is regarded 
as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly 
available and represent actual and regularly occurring 
market transactions on basis.

Level 2

If a market for a financial instrument is not active, 
then the Company establishes fair value using a 
valuation technique. Valuation techniques include 
using recent transactions between knowledgeable, 
willing parties (if available), reference to the current 
fair value of other instruments that are substantially 
the same, discounted cash flow analyses, credit 
models, option pricing models and other relevant 
valuation models. The chosen valuation technique 
makes maximum use of market inputs, relies as little 
as possible on estimates specific to the Company, 
incorporates all factors that market participants 
would consider in setting a price, and is consistent 
with accepted economic methodologies for pricing 
financial instruments. Inputs to valuation techniques 
reasonably represent market expectations and 
measures of the risk-return factors inherent in 
the financial instrument. The Company calibrates 
valuation techniques and tests them for validity using 
prices from observable current market transactions 
in the same instrument or based on other available 
observable market data.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial 
instrument at initial recognition is the transaction 
price, i.e. the fair value of the consideration given 
or received, unless the fair value of that instrument 
is evidenced by comparison with other observable 
current market transactions in the same instrument, 
i.e. without modification or repackaging, or based on 
a valuation technique whose variables include only 
data from observable markets. When transaction 

Notes To The Financial Statements Cont..

price provides the best evidence of fair value at 
initial recognition, the financial instrument is initially 

between this price and the value initially obtained 
from a valuation model is subsequently recognised in 
profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the life of 
the instrument but not later than when the valuation 
is supported wholly by observable market data or the 
transaction is closed out.

 Level 3

 Certain financial instruments are recorded at fair 
value using valuation techniques in which current 
market transactions or observable market data are 
not available. Their fair value is determined by using 
valuation models that have been tested against 
prices or inputs to actual market transactions and 
also using the best estimate of the most appropriate 
model assumptions. Models are adjusted to reflect 
the spread for bid and ask prices to reflect costs 
to close out positions, credit and debit valuation 
adjustments, liquidity spread and limitations in the 
models. Also, profit or loss calculated when such 
financial instruments are first recorded (‘Day 1’ profit 
or loss) is deferred and recognised only when the 
inputs become observable or on derecognition of the 
instrument.
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2.17 E 2.19 Investment in Associates
(Equity – Accounted Investees)

ARNINGS PER SHARE

 The financial statements present earnings per 
share (EPS) for its ordinary shareholders. The EPS is 
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable 
to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding during the period.

2.18 IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

 The Company assesses at each reporting date whether 
there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. 
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment 
testing for an asset is required, the Company makes 
an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. An 
asset’s recoverable amount is higher of asset’s or cash 
generating unit’s fair value less costs to sell and its 
value in use and is determined for an individual asset, 
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that 
are largely independent of those from other assets . 
Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its 
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired 
and is written down to its recoverable amount.

 

Impairment losses of continuing operations are 
recognized in the income statement in those expense 
categories consistent with the function of the 
impaired asset.

 

For assets, an assessment is made at each reporting 
date as to whether there is any indication that 
previously recognized impairment losses may 
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such 
indication exists, the Company makes an estimate 
of the recoverable amount. A previously recognized 
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been 
a change in the estimates used to determine the 
asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment 
loss was recognized. If that is the case the carrying 
amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable 
amount. That the increased amount cannot 
exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment 
loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such 
reversal is recognized in the income statement.

2.20 REVENUE RECOGNITION

 a) Revenue

 Revenue is measured based on consideration 
specified in a contract with a customer and excludes 
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The 
Company recognises revenue when it transfers 
control over a good or service to a customer.

 Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is highly 
probable that a significant reversal in the amount of 
cumulative revenue recognition will not occur

Notes To The Financial Statements Cont..
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The Company Investment in Associate Companies 
are accounted for using the fair value method. An 
associate is an entity in which the Company has 
significant influence. Under the fair value method, 
the investment is initially recognized at cost. Good-
will relating to the investments included in the 
carrying amount of the investment and is neither 
amortized nor individually tested for impairment.

The Income Statement reflects the Company’s 
share of results of operations of the equity account-
ed investees. When there has been a change recog-
nized directly in the equity of associates, the 
Company recognizes its share of any changes, when 
applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. 
Unrealized gains and losses resulting from transac-
tions between the Company and associates are 
eliminated to the extent of the interest in the 
associate.

The Company’s fair value Gain or loss an associate 
is shown on the face of the Income Statement. The 
Financial Statements of associates are prepared for 
the same reporting period as the company. When 
necessary, adjustments are made to bring the 
accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

After application of the fair value method, the 
Company does not identify impairment loss on its 
investment in its associates instead changes in fair 
value are recognized directly in profit or loss. 

Summarized financial information of the equity 
accounted investee of the Company together with 
the Company’s interests is given in Note 4 of the 
Financial Statements.
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 b)     Other Income

 Interest income is recognised as it accrues in the 
income statement. For all financial instruments 
measured at amortised cost and interest bearing 

financial assets classified as Fair value through OCI 

interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly 
discounts the estimated future cash payments or 
receipts through the expected life of the financial 
instrument or a shorter period where appropriate, 
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or 
liability. For interest bearing financial assets carried 
at fair value, interest is recognised on discounted 
cash flow method. Interest income is included under 
finance income in the income statement.  

 c)     Dividend Income

 Dividend income is recognised in the income 
statement on the date that the Company’s right to 
receive payment is established, which is generally 
when the dividend is declared.

 d)      Gains and Losses
 Net gains and losses of a revenue nature arising from 

other non current assets, including investments, are 
accounted for in the statement of comprehensive 
income, after deducting from the proceeds on 
disposal, the carrying amount of such assets and the 
related selling expenses.

2.21 EXPENDITURE RECOGNITION

 a)  Revenue Expenditure 
 All expenditure incurred in the running of the 

business and in maintaining the capital assets in a 

arriving at the profit or loss for the year.

 

b) Capital Expenditure

 

Expenditure incurred for the purpose of acquiring, 
extending or improving assets of a permanent nature 
by means of which to carry on the business or for 
the purpose of increasing the earning capacity of the 
business has been treated as capital expenditure. 
For the purpose of presentation of the Income 
Statement, the Directors are of the opinion that 
function of expenses method fairly present the 
elements of the Company’s performance, hence such 
presentation method is adopted.

 c)  Finance Cost

 Finance Cost comprise interest expense on 
borrowings, unwinding of the discount on provisions 
and contingent consideration, impairment losses 
recognized on financial assets.

 
2.22. INCOME TAX
 

 

Notes To The Financial Statements Cont..

Income tax expense is recognized in income state-
ment except to the extent that it relates to items 
recognized directly in equity, in which case it is 
recognized in equity. Income Tax has been comput-
ed in accordance with the provisions of the Inland 

The Company has determined that interest and 
penalties related to income taxes, including uncer-
tain tax treatments, do not meetthe definition of 
income taxes, and therefore accounted for them 
under LKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent liabilities and 
contingent assets.

Revenue (amendment) Act No. 45 of 2022 and the 
Inland Revenue Act No. 24 of 2017.
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2.  DEFERRED TAX
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on 
temporary di�erences between the tax bases of 
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for 
financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible 
temporary di�erences, carry forward of unused tax 
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is 
probable that taxable profit will be available against 
which the deductible temporary di�erences, and the 
carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax 
losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is 
reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that su�cient 
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of 
the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized 
deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting 
date and are recognized to the extent that it has 
become probable that future taxable profits will allow 
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the 
tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when 
the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on 
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

23.
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2.24. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

 The Company’s objectives when managing capital 
are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern in order to provide returns for 
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and 
to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the 
cost of capital. Consistent with others in the industry, 
capital is monitored on the basis of the gearing ratio. 

2.25. ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET 
EFFECTIVE
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The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka 
has issued a number of new amendments to Sri 
Lanka Accounting Standards (SLFRSs/LKASs) that 
are e�ective for annual periods beginning after the 
current financial year. Accordingly the Company has 
not early in preparing these Financial Statements.
The following amended standards and interpreta-
tions are not expected to have a significant impact on 
the Company’s Financial Statements.

Lack of exchangeability
Amendments to LKAS 21

The amendments specify how an entity should 
assess whether a currency is exchangeable and how it 
should determine a spot exchange rate when 
exchangeability is lacking. 

The amendments also require disclosure of informa-
tion that enables users of its financial statements to 
understand how the currency not being exchangeable 
into the other currency a�ects, or is expected to 
a�ect, the entity’s financial performance, financial 
position and cash flows. 

The amendments will be e�ective for annual report-
ing periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025. Early 
adoption is permitted, but will need to be disclosed. 
When applying the amendments, an entity cannot 
restate comparative information. 
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3.         Investments - Measured at Fair Value through profit or loss

2025 2024

Rs. Rs.

Investments - Measured at Fair Value through profit or loss

Balance as at 1 April 

Additions during the year

Disposals during the year

Fair value Gain/ (Loss) on Investments

Balance as at 31 March

3.1 Investments - Measured at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

Name of the Company

 1,268,433,716 

 628,628,054 

 (462,903,201)

 612,908,182 

 2,047,066,751 

 566,747,384

 926,740,984

 (621,068,387)

 396,013,735

 1,268,433,716

           31.03.2025
No. of

Shares
 Market Value 

Rs.

           31.03.2024
No. of

Shares
 Market Value 

Rs.

Galle Face Capital Partners PLC  2025

ACCESS ENGINEERING PLC
AGALAWATTE PLANTATION PLC
CARGILLS (CEYLON) PLC
CEYLON HOSPITALS PLC (DURDANS)
CEYLON COLD STORES PLC
CEYLON TOBACCO COMPANY PLC
NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT  BANK PLC
COMMERCIAL BANK OF CEYLON PLC
DIALOG AXIATA PLC
HELA APPAREL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HEMAS HOLDINGS PLC
JOHN KEELLS HOLDINGS PLC
HATTON NATIONAL BANK PLC
SAMPATH BANK PLC
RENUKA AGRI FOODS PLC
RENUKA FOODS PLC
RENUKA HOTELS PLC
SUNSHINE HOLDINGS PLC

 -   
 104,781 
 501,277 
 518,791 

 250,000 
 105,000 

 -   
 1,747,848 

 -   
 -   
 -   

 837,100 
 3,500,000 

 -   
 -   
 -   

 2,015,000 
 -

 31.03.2024 
0%

 31.03.2025
43%Brilliant Knight International Ltd.

 31.03.2024 
-

 31.03.2025
500  -   

 -   
 146,375,000 
 146,375,000 

 -   
 4,484,627 

 218,556,772 
 66,145,852 

 20,500,000 
 141,776,250 

 -   
 257,807,580 

 -   
 -   
 -   

 16,909,420 
 1,067,500,000 

 -   
 -   
 -   

 253,386,250 
 -   

 2,047,066,751 

 395,642 
 -   

 501,277 
 447,774 

 -   
 105,000 
 399,831 

 -   
 1,000,000 

 134,500 
 516,831 

 -   
 3,520,359 

 11,875 
 25,088 

 1,906 
 2,015,000 

 100,000 

 8,941,509 
 -   

 180,459,720 
 53,620,937 

 -   
 128,966,250 

 27,188,508 
 -   

 11,700,000 
 820,450 

 41,553,212 
 -   

 633,664,620 
 950,000 

 92,826 
 26,684 

 174,499,000 
 5,950,000 

 1,268,433,716 

Investment in Associate  Holding Percentage No. of Shares

Balance as at  
31.03.2025 

Rs.

 Balance as at
 31.03.2024

Rs.4.
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6.           Trade and Other Receivables

Advance Payment -

-

 170,778 

  170,778 

-

-

 2,214,757 

 2,214,757 

Trade and Other Receivables

With Holding Tax Receivables

Cash and cash equivalents 

 Capital Alliances Investment Grade Fund

 NDB Wealth Money Fund 

 Cash at bank

Amount Due from Related Party

2025

Rs.

2025

Rs.

2025

Rs.

 24,307,328 

 -

 (24,307,328)

-

7

8.

8.1

.           Investment in Treasury Bill

 Opening Balance

During the year purchase

 During the year disposals

Closing Balance

2025

Rs.

             Ceylon Land & Equity PLC -

-

Interested is charge at 

-

-

             Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of statement of cash flows  2,214,757 

 291,760

-

     80,346

     372,106

 36,469

 1,477

 10,574,405

 10,612,351

2024

Rs.

2024

Rs.

2024

Rs.

398,393,216

   96,914,112

 (471,000,000)

 24,307,328

2024

Rs.

 38,395

 38,395

 20,092,894

 20,092,894

 (9,480,543)

AWPLR on monthly basis, and Loans are repayable on demand.

Galle Face Capital Partners PLC  2025

5.

Bank Overdraft
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10. Revenue Reserves

             General Reserves  

             Retained Earnings

11.        Trade & Other payables

             Accruals and provisions

             WHT Payable 

9.         Stated capital

             Number of Ordinary Shares Issued and Fully Paid

             Script Issue
             Balance as at 1st April

            Balance as at 31st March

            Stated Capital

General reserve comprises the amount allocated from the earnings by the Directors to meet any contingencies.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time and one vote 
present at the meeting of the shareholders or one vote per share in the case of a poll.

13.       Amounts Due to Related Companies

Galle Face Properties Ltd

Shaw & Wallace Hedges Ltd

12.        Income tax payable/ (receivable)

  Interest is charge at AWPLR on monthly basis, and Loans are repayable on demand.

Balance as at 01 April
Income tax provision for the year (Note 18.1)
Income tax under provision in respect of previous year

Payments made during the year

Balance as at 31 March

Scrip Issue
Balance as at 1st April

618,803 

 731,889,722

  732,508,525

 526,167

-

860,002

2024

 1,115,716

 26,949,524

2024
Rs.

2024
Rs.

2024
Rs.

2024
Rs.

2024
Rs.

 6,314,336

 158,796

 6,473,132

 26,422,683
  1,140,252

 -
 27,562,935

 (26,509,540)

 1,053,395

25,833,808

513,655,750

542,775,948

29,120,198

Rs.

618,803 

 1,357,879,359 

 1,358,498,162 

  300,000 

 85,378 

             Unclaimed Dividend  333,835 333,835

 719,213 

2025

 1,945,415 

  28,894,939 

2025
Rs.

2025
Rs.

2025
Rs.

2025
Rs.

2025
Rs.

  243,279,746 

-

 243,279,746 

  1,053,395 
  -

 1,690,552 
 2,743,947 

  (5,942,577)

  (3,198,630)

 26,949,524 

 542,775,948 

 596,528,794 

 53,752,846 

Rs.

            Balance as at 31st March
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14.

15.

16.

16.1

16.2

17.

18.

Notes To The Financial Statements Cont..

   24,141,597

 7,889,671

 32,031,268

 80,000 
 194,269 
 310,709 

-   
-   

 793,557 
 106,559 

 -  
 9,572 

 717,496 

 2,212,162 

 -   

 -   

 25,349

 175,035

 38,395

 29,482,558

 29,721,337

 26,350

 23,681,985

 23,708,335

 80,000

 310,709

 1,184,266

  1,140,252

  1,140,252

793,557

 53,518,544 

 24,745,674 

 78,264,218 

 450,000 
 44,187 

 438,110 
 443,283 
 222,385 

 -   
 862,531 

 -   
 -   

 467,235 

 2,927,731 

 -   

 1,690,552 

 79,522 

 1,205,853 

 -   

 692,671 

 1,978,046 

 59,479 

 7,236,523 

 7,296,002 

 450,000 

 438,110 

  888,110 

 -   

 1,690,552 

 -   

Revenue

Dividend income from quoted company

Gain on disposal of shares

Administrative expenses

Director Fees

Printing & Stationary Expenses

Audit fees

CSE Expenses

CDS Expenses

Subscription Charges 

Professional Charges

Refreshment

Secretarial Expenses

Finance income and finance cost

Finance income

Interest income on savings

Interest Income on Investments on Units

Interest Income on Inter Company Loan

Repo interest income

Interest Income on Treasury Bills

Finance cost

Bank charges

Interest for Inter Company Loan

Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation is stated after charging all the expenses including the followings;

Subscription Charges

Director Fees

Audit fees

Income tax expense

Current tax expense (Note 18.1)

Income tax under provision in respect of previous year

Galle Face Capital Partners PLC  2025

2025
Rs.

2024
Rs.
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The earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to ordinary shareholders by weighted 
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during  the year.

18.1

Notes To The Financial Statements Cont..

 431,845,843

  (24,141,597)

 (29,721,337)

 (7,889,671)

 (396,013,735)

 (25,920,497)

 29,721,337

 (25,920,497)

  3,800,840

  1,140,252

  1,140,252 

 -   

Tax reconciliation statement

Profit before tax

Less : Dividend income 

Finance Income

          Exempted Income (Note 14)

         Gain/(Loss) on Fair Value of Investments Measured at Fair Value Through Profit

         or Loss (Note 03)

Add : Disallowable expenses

Assessable income from business

Assessable income from investment

Assessable income from business income

Taxable income (Note 18.2)

Income tax expenses (Note 18.2)

Income tax expense

18.2

19.1

 -   

  3,800,840

  3,800,840

Computation of Income Tax Laibility

Taxable income

Dividend Income

Interest income - Liable

Tax Liability

Income Tax Expenses @ 30%   1,140,252

  1,140,252

Earnings per share

Amounts used as numerator (Restated)

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders (Rs.)

Number of ordinary shares used as the denominator

Weighted average number of shares

Earnings per share (Rs.)

 430,705,591

 28,894,939 

 14.91 

Income tax  has  been  provided as per the  rates  legislated in accordance with the Inland Revenue Act, No. 24 of 2017 and  it’s 

 682,926,713 

 (53,518,544)

 (1,978,046)

 (24,745,674)

 (612,908,182)

 -   

 (10,223,733)

 1,978,046 

 (10,223,733)

 (8,245,687)

 -   

  - Income tax under provision 1,690,552   

1,690,552    

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

-   

 681,236,161 

 28,894,939 

 23.58 

amendments there to. In terms of the above the income tax provision has been calculated on the adjusted profit at the standard 
rate of 30%. As per Inland Revenue amendment Act No. 45 of 2022 the dividend income received is exempted. 

Weighted average number of shares as at 31st March 2024 has been restated based on the number of shares issued as scrip 
dividend in September 2024 in accordance Sri Lanka Accounting Standard LKAS 33-earning per share.
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2025
Rs.

2024
Rs.

2025
Rs.

2024
Rs.

2025
Rs.

2024
Rs.
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20.

19.2

Key Management Personnel 

Key management personnel (KMP) are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, 

directing and controlling the activities of the Company, directly or indirectly. All the members of the Board of 

Directors of the Company have been classified as KMP of the Company.     

Diluted Earning Per Share   

Diluted

19.3 Dividend per share   

There are no transaction with key managerial persons during the year other than transactions listed below:

 earning per share is calculated by dividing net profit for the year attributable to ordinary share holders by the 

shares. 

21.      Related Party Transactions
Name of the 

Company
Nature of 

relationship
Name of the 

common Directors
Nature of transactions  Transaction amount  Balance as at 

As at 
31.03.2024

As at 
31.03.2025

80,000 450,000

 2025
Rs.

2025 
Rs.

Renu

Director’s Fees (Rs.)

ka Enterprises 
(Pvt) Ltd

Mr. S.V.Rajiyah Shared service expenses    -
Settlements

 467,235

  (467,235)
365,364

(365,364)

 2024
Rs.

2024
Rs.

   - 

Shaw Wallace & 
Hedges Ltd 

Mr. S.V.Rajiyah
Mr. M. S. Dominic

Loan received
Loan repaid
Interest charges
Interest settlement

 159,000,000
 (159,000,000)

 565,195 
 (723,991)

 125,066,680
 (146,908,084)

 - 
 - 

 -  158,796
   

Ceylon Land &
Equity PLC

Mr. S.V.Rajiyah
Mr. M.R Ratnasabapathy
Mr. K.Liyanagamage

Loan granted
Loan repaid

 -   
 38,395 

 38,395
 (1,000,000)

 -  (38,395)

 

Galle Face 
Properties Ltd.

Mr. S.V.Rajiyah
Mr. M. S. Dominic
Mr. K.Liyanagamage

Loan received
Loan repaid
Interest charges
Interest settlement

 400,500,000
 (166,700,000)

 6,465,119
 (3,299,709)

 470,315,105
 (544,000,770)

 -   
 -   

 (243,279,746)  6,314,336

 

2025 2024  
Rs. Rs.

Amounts used as Numerator

Total dividend paid  55,246,524 

 26,949,524 Weighted average number of shares (Nos)
Dividend per share (Rs.)  2.05 

32,292,260

25,833,808
1.25

There were no diluted potential of ordinary shares as at 31st March 2025, hence diluted earning per share is same as basic 
earning per share.
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21.1    Related Party Transactions -  Recurrent
Name of the 

Company
Nature of 

relationship
Name of the 

common Directors
Nature of transactions  Transaction amount  Balance as at 

 2025                 
Rs.

2024
Rs.

2025                 
Rs.

2024                 
Rs.

Renuka Enterprises 
(Pvt) Ltd

Mr. S.V.Rajiyah
Shared service expenses  467,235    -    - 

Settlements  (467,235)  

365,364

(365,364)    -    - 

21.2    Related Party Transactions -  Non Recurrent
Name of the 

Company
Nature of 

relationship
Name of the 

common Directors
Nature of transactions  Transaction amount  Balance as at 

 2025                 
Rs.

2024                 
Rs.

2025
Rs.

2024                 
Rs.

Shaw Wallace & 

Hedges Ltd 

Mr. S.V.Rajiyah
Mr. M. S. Dominic

Loan received
Loan repaid
Interest charges
Interest settlement

 159,000,000 
 (159,000,000)

 565,195 
 (723,991)

 125,066,680 
 (146,908,084)

 - 
 - 

 -    158,796 

Related Party Transactions - Recurrent

Related Company Relationship
Description of 

transaction

Aggregate 
Value of 

related Party 
transactions 
Entered in to 

During the year 
Rs.

Aggregate value 
of Related Party 

Transactions 
as a % of Net 

Revenue/Income

%

Balance 
as at 

31/03/2025

Balance 
as at 

01/04/2024

Terms and 
conditions 

of the 
Related Party 

transaction

Renuka 
Enterprises 

(Pvt) Ltd

Shared Services  (467,235) (0.60%) - -

- -

 Comparable 
uncontrolled  

PriceSettlement of 
Invoices

0.60%

There are no recurrent transactions other than stated above, that have been entered in to with Related Entities during the year 
which are more than 10% of the Company turnover that require disclosure in this Annual Report in Terms of Section 9.3.2 of the 
Listing Rules of Colombo Stock Exchange.          
    
Similarly there are no non-recurrent transactions other than stated below, that have been entered in to with Related Entities 
during the year which are more than 10% of Equity and 5% of Total assets which ever is lower that require disclosure under the 
same provision.

 467,235 

Ceylon Land & 
Equity PLC

Mr. S.V.Rajiyah
Mr. M.R Ratnasabapathy
Mr. K.Liyanagamage

Loan granted
Loan repaid

 -   
 38,395

 38,395 
 (1,000,000)

 -    (38,395)

Galle Face 
Properties Ltd.

Mr. S.V.Rajiyah
Mr. M. S. Dominic
Mr. K.Liyanagamage

Loan received
Loan repaid
Interest charges
Interest settlement

 400,500,000 
 (166,700,000)

 6,465,119 
 (3,299,709)

 470,315,105 
 (544,000,770)

 -   
 -   

 -    6,314,336 
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 Related Party Transactions - Non Recurrent

Related Company Relationship
Description of 

transaction

Aggregate 
Value of 

related Party 
transactions 
Entered in to 

During the year 
Rs.

Value of 
Related party 
Transactions 

as a % of 
Equity 

%

Value of 
Related party 
Transactions 

as a % of 
Total Assets 

%

Terms and 
Conditions 

of the 
Related Party 
Transactions

Rationale 
for entering 

in to the 
transaction

Galle Face 
Properties Ltd

Inter Company Loan  400,500,000 18.21%
 At a market 

rate 

 Inter 
Company 

Loan 

Shaw Wallace & 
Hedges Limited

Inter Company Loan
 At a market 

rate 
 Inter 

  naoL ynapmoC

22.   Contingent Liabilities 
  There are no material contingent liabilities which would  require adjustments to or  disclosure in  the Financial 
  Statements as at the reporting date.

23. Capital commitments 
There were no material capital commitments which have been approved as at the reporting date.

24. Events occurring after the reporting date         

 159,000,000 8.13% 7.23%

20.49%

There were no material events occuring after the reporting date that require adjustment to or disclosure in the 
financial statements other than the followings. 

The board of directors of the company has decided a distribution of a first and final dividend of Rs. 2.15 per 
each existing issued and fully paid ordinary share. 
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25.    Financial risk management       
         
             Introduction and overview        
             The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:    
    
 (i)    Credit risk        
 (ii)   Liquidity risk        
 (iii)  Market risk        
        a.   Interest risk
        b.   Currency risk

    Introduction and overview   
        This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Company’s 
       objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk and the Company’s management of 
              capital. Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout this financial statements.

25.1    Risk management framework

             The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk 
             management framework.

     The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the 
   Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk 
   management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the 
   Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to 
   develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and 
   obligations.

    Credit risk
      Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a shareholder or counter party to a financial 
        instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables 
             from customers and investment securities.
 
               The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each shareholders.
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25.2     Financial risk management

             Exposure to credit risk   
             The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to  

             credit risk at the reporting date was as follows;   
Carrying Amount as at

2025 2024

Rs. Rs.

Amount due from related party

Investments & Treasury Bills

 Cash Balance

   

    Liquidity risk   

       L  
       with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s 

 
       meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable 

             losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

             The following are the contractual obligation of financial liquidity;

Amount due to related party

             Other payable

25.    Financial risk management contd..  

-

-

 2,214,757 

 2,214,757 

  

38,395

24,307,328

10,612,351

 34,958,075 

2025 Mature
within 1yr.Rs.

 243,279,746 

 719,213 

 243,998,959 

 243,279,746 

 719,213 

 243,998,959 

-

-

-

Mature
Over 1yr.

2024 Mature
within 1yr.Rs.

 6,473,132 

 860,002 

 7,333,134 

 6,473,132 

 860,002 

 7,333,134 

-

-

-

Mature
Over 1yr.
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 -   
 -   

 1,884,659 
 118,506 
 211,592 

 -   
 2,214,757 

 -   
 2,214,757 

 36,469 
 1,477 

 (9,651,324) 
 132,834 

-   
 24,307,328 
 14,826,784 

 38,395 
 14,865,179 

Capital Alliance Investment Grade Fund-BBF(lka)
NDB Wealth Management Money Fund-A+
Standard Chartered Bank-AAA(lka)
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC-A(lka)
Hatton National Bank PLC-A(lka)
Investment in Treasury Bills

Ceylon Land & Equity PLC
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    Market risk
             The market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates will a ect the Company’s               
          income or  the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to 
             manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.

             a.    Interest rate risk    
       Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of the cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate 
             because of changes in market interest rates. Interest rate risk arises on interest bearing financial instruments  

             recognized in the statement of financial position.   

   
The interest rate risk of the Company arises from financial instruments which are exposed to variable or 
fixed rate  interest rates. Variable interest rates expose the Company to cash flow due to the impact on the 
quantum of  interest payable. Financial instruments with fixed interest rates are subject to variations in fair 

values due to market interest movements.   

At the reporting date, the Company interest bearing financial instrument were as follows.

2024
Note

2025

Rs. Rs.

Fixed Rate Instruments

Financial Assets

Investments in Treasury Bills

 Cash Balance 8

Variable Rate Instruments
Financial Assets
Amount due from related parties 5

Financial Liabilities
Amount due to related parties 13

24,307,328

10,612,315
 34,919,643

38,395
38,395

(6,473,142)

(20,092,894)
(26,566,026)

8,392,049

Bank Overdraft

Sensitivity analysis for variable rate Instruments
The 

As at 31st of March

2025 Profit
or Loss

2024 Profit
or Loss

Variable rate instruments (1% decrease)  (4,318,458)
Variable rate instruments (1% increase)  4,318,458 

 (6,829,267)
 6,829,267 

following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other variables 
held constant, of the profit before tax. 

 b.    Currency risk
The Company is not exposed to Currency risk. 

2   Financial risk management contd..  

8.1

5.
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-

 2,214,757 
 2,214,757 

-
-

 (243,279,746)

-
 (243,279,746)

 (241,064,989)
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25.3 FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) Market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 
is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 
is unobservable.

Carrying amount Carrying amount

31 March 2025 FVTPL Amortized 

Cost
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

      Financial assets 
      measured at fair 
       value

      Investments - 
      measured at fair 
      value through 
      profit or loss

 -    -    -   

 -    -    -   

 -    -    -   

 -    -    -   

 -    -    -   

Financial assets not measured 
at fair value

Cash and cash equivalents for 
the purpose of statement of 
cash flows

Amount due from related party

Trade and other receivables

 2,047,066,751 

 2,047,066,751 

 2,047,066,751 

 2,047,066,751 

    -    -

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -    -   

Financial liabilities not 
measured at fair value

Bank overdrafts    -    - 

Amount due to related party

Other payable    -    - 

 -    -    

 

      

25.    Financial risk management contd..  

   -    - 

- 

- 

 -

- 

- 

- 

 -

- 

   - 

   - 

 -   

   - 

-

 719,213 

243,279,746

243,998,959 

 2,047,066,751 

 2,047,066,751 

 2,214,757 

-

 170,778 

 2,385,535 

-

 719,213 

243,279,746 

243,998,959 

 2,047,066,751 

 2,047,066,751 

 2,214,757  

-

 170,778 

 2,385,535 

Galle Face Capital Partners PLC  2025 72



Notes To The Financial Statements Cont..

25.    Financial risk management contd..  

In determining the fair value, highest and best use of the property including the current condition of the properties, 

future usability and associated redevelopment requirements have been considered. Also, the values have made 

reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties, with appropriate adjustments for size and 

 location. The appraised fair values are rounded within the range of values.
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Carrying amount Carrying amount

31 March 2024 FVTPL Amortized 

Cost
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

      Financial assets 
      measured at fair 
       value

      Investments - 
      measured at fair 
      value through 
      profit or loss

 -    -    -   

 -    -    -   

 -    -    -   

 -    -    -   

 -    -    -   

Financial assets not measured 
at fair value

C
Investments in Treasury Bills

ash and cash equivalents for 
the purpose of statement of 
cash flows

Amount due from related party

Trade and other receivables

 1,268,433,716 

 1,268,433,716 

 1,268,433,716 

 1,268,433,716 

 1,268,433,716 

 1,268,433,716 

 1,268,433,716 

 1,268,433,716 

    -    -

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -    -   

Financial liabilities not 
measured at fair value

Bank overdrafts    -    - 

Amount due to related party

Other payable    -    - 

 -    -    

   -    - 

- 

- 

 -

- 

- 

- 

 -

- 

   - 

   - 

 -   

   - 

 20,092,894 

 860,002 

 6,473,132 

 27,426,028 

 20,092,894 

 860,002 

 6,473,132 

 27,426,028 

 10,612,351 

 -    -    -    -    -    24,307,328 

 38,395 

 372,106 

35,330,180 

 10,612,351 

 24,307,328 

 38,395 

 372,106 

35,330,180 
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Five year Summary

Year Ended 31st March 2024

Rs. ‘000

2023

Rs. ‘000

2022

Rs. ‘000

2021

Rs. ‘000

2025

Rs. ‘000

2024

Rs. ‘000

2023

Rs. ‘000

2022

Rs. ‘000

2021

Rs. ‘000

2025

Rs. ‘000

a) Summary of Operation

Revenue

(Loss) / Profit before net finance cost and tax

(Loss) / Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit after tax

(Loss) / Profit attributable to equity holders of the company

b) Summary of Financial Position                    

As At 31 March

Equity 

Stated capital

Retained earnings

Total Equity

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Total Liabilities

Total Equity and Liabilities

Assets
Investments - Measured at FVTPL

Current Assets

Total Assets

c) Key Indicators

Earnings /(Loss) per share (Rs.)

Net assets value per share (Rs.)

Current ratio (times)

d) Dividend per share (Rs.)

Galle Face Capital Partners PLC  2025

75,764

71,452

96,638

(4,370)

91,668

91,668

2,886

(101,886)

(78,852)

(5,525)

(84,377)

(84,377)

34,270

85,897

173,750

(26,447)

147,303

147,303

32,031

425,833

431,846

(1,140)

430,706

430,706

78,264

688,245

682,927

(1,691)

681,236

681,236

513,656

271,169

784,825

3,112

3,112

787,937

-

787,937

787,937

3.55

30.38

253.19

-

513,656

186,792

700,448

1,929

1,929

702,377

337,221

365,156

702,377

(3.27)

27.11

189.3

-

513,656

334,095

847,751

144,183

144,183

991,934

566,748

425,186

991,934

5.47

 33.00 

0.19

1.25

542,776

732,509

1,275,285

28,479

28,479

1,303,764

1,268,434

35,330

1,303,764

14.91

47.23

1.14

1.25

596,529

1,358,498

1,955,027

243,999

243,999

2,199,026

2,193,442

5,584

2,199,026

23.58

67.66

0.02

2.05
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Shareholders’ and Investors’ information

     SHARE INFORMATION 2025

     Total No. of shareholders 2,269

     Total No. of Shares 28,894,939

     PUBLIC SHARE HOLDING 2025

     The percentage of Ordinary Shares held by the public 29.94%

     Total number of share holders representing the public holding 2,263

The float adjusted market capitalization was Rs. 209.2 Mn as at 31st March 2025. The Company has over 10% public shareholding 
and over 200 public shareholders meeting the minimum thresholds for compliance on minimum public holding under the option 
“2” of Section 7.13.1 (b) of continuing listing requirements.

     SHARE TRADING INFORMATION

     1st of April to 31st March 2025

Voting

     Share Price

     Highest (Rs.)  60.90 

     Lowest (Rs.)  40.00 

     As at 31st March  46.10 

     Market Capitalization 2025

     As at 31st March (Rs. '000) 1,332,057

     No. of Traders 4,864

     No. of Shares Traded 11,903,034

     Value of Shares Traded (Rs. '000) 608,574

 2,272

26,949,524

29.94%

 1,995

29.63

20.10

28.50

768,061

4,080

7,358,205

140,102

2024

2024

2024

Voting

2024
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Voting Shares Details 

     VOTING SHARES

     No of Shares Held 

     1 - 1,000

     1,001 - 10,000

     10,001 - 100,000

     100,001 - 1,000,000

     1,000,001 & Over

     VOTING SHARES

     Analysis of Shareholders

     Individuals

     Institutions

     Total

     ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDERS - VOTING

     Analysis of Shareholders

     Resident

     Non Resident

     Total

     ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDERS - VOTING

     Analysis of Shareholders

     Related Companies

     Directors and Spouses

     Public

31st March 2025

No. of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares
%

1.21%

5.39%

12.76%

11.85%

68.79%

100.00%

350,984

1,555,719

3,689,113

3,423,709

19,875,414

28,894,939

1,657

470

127

11

4

2,269

17.08%

82.92%

100.00%

4,935,987

23,958,952

28,894,939

2,135

134

2,269

99.76%

0.24%

100.00%

28,826,554

68,385

28,894,939

2,229

40

2,269

69.02%

1.04%

29.95%

100.00%

19,942,185

300,000

8,652,754

28,894,939

5

1

2,263

2,269

31st March 2025

No. of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares
%

31st March 2025

No. of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares
%

31st March 2025

No. of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares
%

31st March 2024

No. of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares %

1,635 342,922 1.27%

475 1,483,870 5.51%

146 4,098,719 15.21%

13 2,146,176 7.96%

3 18,877,837 70.05%

2,272 26,949,524 100.00%

31st March 2024

No. of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares
%

2,145 5,477,533 20.33%

79.67%127   21,471,991

2,272 26,949,524 100.00%

31st March 2024

No. of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares
%

2,236 26,885,414 99.76%

36 64,110 0.24%

2,272 26,949,524 100.00%

31st March 2024

No. of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares
%

1 14,177,530 52.61%

1 1,043 0.04%

2,270 12,770,951 47.39%

2,272 26,949,524 100.00%
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Voting as at                          
31.03.2025

Voting as at                  
31.03.2024

No Name No. of Shares % No. of Shares %

CEYLON LAND & EQUITY PLC

SHAW WALLACE & HEDGES LTD

RENUKA HOLDINGS PLC

THE CARGO BOAT INVESTMENT COMPANY LTD

PEOPLES LEASING & FINANCE PLC/SUHADA GAS DISTRIBUTORS (PVT) LTD

ASSETLINE FINANCE LTD/H.M.A.K.B HERATH

HATTON NATIONAL BANK PLC/ALMAS HOLDINGS (PVT) LTD

MR.S.V. RAJIYAH AND MRS. J.J.B.A. RAJIYAH

HATTON NATIONAL BANK PLC/MUSHTAQ MOHAMED FAUD

MISS.O.U.K JAYASUNDARA

MRS.D.R COSTA

ASSETLINE FINANCE LTD/SUHADA GAS DISTRIBUTORS (PVT) LTD

HATTON NATIONAL BANK PLC/RAVINDRA ERLE RAMBUKWELLE

MR.U.D.M FERNANDO

UNION INVESTMENTS PVT LTD

SENKADAGALA FINANCE PLC/R.M.S.P.R BANDARA

MR.H.M.T.N KUMARA

DFCC BANK PLC/P.S WEERASEKERA

MR.B.S WEERAKOON

PEOPLE'S LEASING & FINANCE PLC/ALMAS HOLDINGS (PVT) LTD

8,121,380

6,800,000

3,900,000

1,054,034

807,876

545,892

444,249

300,000

263,021

234,232

226,289

190,911

143,550

143,538

124,151

100,000

99,567

98,337

85,500

76,000

 23,758,527 

28.11%

23.53%

13.50%

3.65%

2.80%

1.89%

1.54%

1.04%

0.91%

0.81%

0.78%

0.66%

0.50%

0.50%

0.43%

0.35%

0.34%

0.34%

0.30%

0.26%

82.22%

14,177,530

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

127,500

 -   

115,793

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 14,420,823

52.61%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.47%

0.00%

0.43%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

53.51%

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

Top 20 Largest Shareholders
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Notice of Meeting - Annual General Meeting

Galle Face Capital Partners PLC  2025

Notice is hereby given that the One Hundred and Fifth 
(105th) Annual General Meeting (AGM) of Galle Face 
Capital Partners PLC (the ‘Company’) will be held on vertu-
ally Friday, 19th September , 2025 at 3.00 p.m. at No. 69, 
Sri Jinarathana Mawatha, Colombo 02 for the following 
purposes:

1.To receive and consider the Annual Report of the Board 
of Directors on the a�airs of the Company, the statement 
of Compliance and the Financial Statement for year ended 
31st March 2025 with the Report of the Auditors thereon.

2.To declare a dividend as recommended by the Board of 
Directors and to consider to pass the following resolu-
tions:

a. Declaration of a first and final dividend

THAT a first and final dividend of Rs. 2.15 per share, 
consisting of a scrip dividend of Rs. 1.85 per share and a 
cash dividend of Rs. 0.30 per share, be declared, the scrip 
dividend of Rs. 1.85 per share to be satisfied by the issue 
of 687,090 fully paid ordinary shares constituting a total 
sum of Rs. 53,455,637, and the cash dividend of Rs. 0.30 
per share to amount to a total sum of Rs. 8,673,252, based 
on the issued ordinary shares as at 13th August 2025.;

THAT the shareholders entitled to such dividend would be 
those shareholders, whose names have been duly regis-
tered in the Shareholders’ Register maintained by the 
Registrars of the Company [i.e. SSP Corporate Services 
(Pvt) Ltd., No. 101, Inner Flower Road, Colombo 03] and 
also those shareholders whose names appear on the 
Central Depository Systems (Pvt) Ltd. (‘CDS’) as at end of 
trading on the Record Date [i.e. the Second (2nd) market 
day from and excluding the date of the meeting] (the 
‘Entitled Shareholders’);

THAT subject to the shareholders approving the proposed 
allotment and issue of new ordinary shares by passing the 
resolutions set out in Items 2(i) and 2(ii) below, the 
declared first and final dividend of Rs. 2.15 per share, 
consisting of a scrip dividend of Rs. 1.85 per share and a 
cash dividend of Rs. 0.30 per share, be distributed and 
satisfied by the allotment and issue of new ordinary 
shares (the “distribution scheme”) based on the share 
price of ordinary shares as at 13th August 2025, to the 
Entitled Shareholders whose names appear on the Central 
Depository Systems (Pvt) Ltd. (‘CDS’) as at end of trading 
on the Record Date [i.e. the Second (2nd) market day from 
and excluding the date of the meeting]

• The allotment and issue of new ordinary shares of 
Rs.1.85 cents per  share  dividend  entitlement (subject to 
applicable government taxes).

THAT accordingly and subject to the approval of the 
shareholders being obtained in the manner aforemen- 
tioned the implementation of the said distribution 
scheme shall be as follows:

By way of the allotment and issue of new shares:

The sum of:
 – Rs. 53,455,637 to which the ordinary sharehold- 
ers are entitled (subject to applicable government taxes);
and
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Notice of Meeting Cont..

Galle Face Capital Partners PLC  2025

shall be satisfied by the allotment and issue of new 
ordinary shares to the entitled shareholders of the 
ordinary shares respectively, on the basis of the following 
ratios:

 • 1 new fully paid ordinary share for every 
42.0540540541 existing issued and fully paid ordinary 
shares calculated on the basis of the market value of the 
ordinary shares as at end of trading on 13th August 2025;

THAT the ordinary residual share fractions, respectively, 
arising in pursuance of the aforementioned allotment and 
issue of new ordinary shares after applying the formulas 
referred to in the sub heading“Residual fractions of 
shares” in the “Circular to the shareholders on the first 
and final dividend for 2025” dated 13th August 2025. will 
be allotted to trustees to be nominated by the Board and 
such shares will be sold and the net sale proceeds arising 
therefrom be distributed to a charity/ charities approved 
by the Board of Directors.

THAT the new shares to be issued in pursuance of the said 
distribution scheme constituting a total issue of 687,090 
new ordinary shares, based on the issued and fully paid 
ordinary shares as at 13th August 2025, shall, immediate-
ly consequent to due allotment thereof to the entitled 
shareholders rank equal and pari passu in all respects with 
the existing issued and fully paid ordinary shares and the 
existing issued and fully paid ordinary shares of the 
Company respectively including the entitle- mentto 
participate in any dividend that may be declared after the 
date of allotment thereof and shall be listed on the 
Colombo Stock Exchange;
and

a. Dividend Resolution No. 2 (i): (ordinary resolution)

THAT a new issue of shares provided for by Article 4 (b) 
and 16 (1) of the Articles of Association of Galle Face 
Capital Partners PLC (the ‘Company’), be and is hereby 
issue of new shares to be e�ected by the Company for 
purposes of satisfying in first and final dividend for the 
year ended March 31, 2025:

“The allotment and issue of 687,090 new ordinary shares, 
credited as fully paid to entitled shareholders 'as at end of 
trading on the Record Date [i.e. the Second (2nd) market 
day from and excluding the date of the meeting]' and 
which new shares shall rank equal and pari passu with the 
existing issued and fully paid ordinary shares of the 
Company including the right to participate in any dividend 
which may be declared after the date of allotment of such 
shares”.

b. Dividend Resolution No. 2 (ii): (Ordinary Resolution)

THAT a first and final dividend of Rs. 8,668,482  as the 
cash distribution for the financial year ended March 31, 
2025, be and is hereby declared and paid in cash to the 
shareholders whose names appear in the Register of 
Members of the Company as at the close of trading on the 
Record Date [i.e. the Second (2nd) market day from and 
excluding the date of the meeting].
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b.Approval of an issue of ordinary shares (Dividend 
Resolution No. 2 (iii) )(Ordinary Resolution):

THAT the proposed allotment and issue of 687,090 new 
ordinary shares credited as fully paid to entitled share- 
holders as at end of trading on the Record Date [i.e. the 
Second (2nd) market day from and excluding the date of 
the meeting]' and which new shares shall rank equal and 
pari passu with the existing issued and fully paid ordinary 
shares of the Company including the right to participate in 
any dividend which may be declared after the date of 
allotment of such shares be and is hereby approved in 
pursuance of Article 4 (b) and 16 (1) of the Articles of Asso- 
ciation of the Company; and

THAT accordingly the Company’s management be and is 
hereby authorized to take all necessary steps to give 

shares of the Company.

3. To re-elect Mr. M.S.Dominic  as a director who retires by 
Rotation in terms of Article 73(1). 

4 (i). To appoint Messrs Ernst and Young, Chartered 
Accountants, asrecommended by the Board of Directors 
as the Company’s Auditors for the financial year ending 
March 31, 2026; and 

4 (ii).To authorize the Board of Directors to deter mine the 
remuneration of the Auditors forthe financial year ending 
March 31, 2026.

5. To authorize the Board of Directors to deter mine dona-
tionsfor the year 2026.

By Order of the Board of 
Galle Face Capital Partners PLC,
Renuka Enterprises (Pvt) Ltd 
Company Secretaries
28th August 2025 - Colombo

Notes

(i) A duly registered and entitled holder of the Company’s 
ordinary (shares is entitled to participate at the meeting, 
speak and vote at the AGM and is entitled to appoint a 
proxy holder to participate speak, and vote in his/her 
stead.

(ii) A duly registered and entitled holder of the Company’s 
ordinary (non-voting) shares is entitled only to participate 
at the meeting and speak at the AGM and to vote only on 
the resolutions set out in items 2 (i), 2 (ii) and 2 (iii) of the 
Notice of Meeting. Such a shareholder is entitled to 
appoint a proxy holder to participate at the meeting and 
speak on his/her behalf and to vote only on the resolu-
tions set out in items 2 (i), 2 (ii) and 2 (iii) of the Notice of 
Meeting.

(iii) A proxy holder need not be a shareholder of the 
Company.

(iv) A Form of Proxy is sent along with this Report. The 
Form of Proxy should be completed legibly and forwarded 
to the Company, Company Secretary, to No. 69, Sri 
Jinaratana Road Colombo 02, not later than forty-eight 
(48) hours before the time appointed for the holding of 
the AGM.
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Circular to the Shareholders on the
First and Final Dividend for 2025
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Dear Shareholder/s,

First and Final Dividend for the year ended March 31, 
2025 to be Satisfied by the Allotment and Issue of New 
Shares.

The Board of Directors of the Company is pleased to 
inform its Shareholders that a first and final dividend of 
Rs. 2.15 per share for the financial year ended March 31, 
2025, has been recommended for declaration at the 
Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) to be held on 19th 
September 2025 at 3.00 p.m. at No. 69, Sri Jinarathana 
Mawatha, Colombo 2.

This dividend consists of:
 • a scrip dividend of Rs. 1.85 per share, to be 
satisfied by the allotment of new ordinary shares out of 
the dividend received by the Company; and

 • a cash dividend of Rs. 0.30 per share, to be paid 
out of the profits of the Company for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2025, subject to applicable government 
taxes.

The Board of Directors is confident that, the Company will 
be able to satisfy the solvency test set out in Section 57 of 
the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 (as amended) [‘CA 
2007’] immediately post0 allotment of such dividend. A 
Certificate of Solvency has been requested by the Compa- 
ny’s Auditors, Messrs Ernst & Young, Chartered Account-
ants.

Subject to obtaining the approval of the Shareholders,the 
said dividend will be satisfied in accordance with a distri- 
bution scheme where by:

(i) New ordinary shares will be allotted and issued, in 
satisfaction of the dividend entitlement, constituting a 
total sum of Rs. 53,455,637 based on the issued and fully 
paid shares of the Company as at 31st March 2025

Accordingly, and in pursuance of the aforesaid distribu- 
tion scheme, the Company proposes to issue:

687,090 number of new ordinary shares, calculated based 
on the issued and fully paid ordinary shares as at 31st 
March 2025 and on the basis of their market value 
(closing price) as at end of trading on 13th August 2025;

(ii) The balance dividend of Rs. 0.30 per share, amounting 
to a total cash distribution of Rs. 8,668,482  will be paid 
to the Shareholders entitled thereto, subject to applica-
ble government taxes.
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The said shares shall be issued in the following ratios to 
the entitled Shareholders ofthe Company:

a. 1 new fully paid ordinary share for every 42.0540540541 
existing issued and fully paid ordinary shares calculated 
on the basis of market value (closing price) of the ordinary 
shares as at end of trading on 13th August 2025; and

The above share ratio is based on a value of Rs. 1.85 Cents 
per ordinary share (subject to applicable government 
taxes) as at the end of trading on 13th August 2025. The 
Board of Directors is satisfied that the aforementioned 
values which constitute the consideration for which the 
new shares are to be allotted and issued is fair and 
reasonable to the Company and to all its existing Share-
holders.

Entitled Shareholders

Shareholders entitled to participate in the said dividend 
are those who are duly registered in the Company’s Share 
Register and also those shareholders whose names 
appear on the Central Depository Systems (Pvt) Ltd 
(‘CDS’) as at end of trading on the Record Date [i.e. the 
Second  (2nd) market day from and excluding the date of 
the meeting] (the ‘Entitled Shareholders’).

In calculating the number of shares held by a shareholde- 
rasattherelevantdatefortheproposed allotment andis- 
sueofnewshares,theshareholding of the shareholder as 
appearing in the CDS and the Shareholders’ Register 
maintained by the Registrars oftheCompany [SSP Corpo- 
rate Services (Pvt) Ltd,No. 101,Inner Flower Road, Colom- 
bo 03] will not be aggregated. However, if a shareholder 
holds shares with multiple stockbrokers, the shares held 
withmultiplestockbrokers will be aggregated for calcula- 
tion purposes, and theshares arising as a

result of the proposed issue and allotment of new shares 
will be uploaded proportionately to the respective CDS 
accounts held with each broker. The Company has 
obtained the approval in principle of the Colombo Stock- 
Exchange (‘CSE’) for the proposed allotment and issue of 
new shares.

Residual Fractions of Shares
The residual fractions arising from the aforementioned 
allotment and issue of new ordinary shares respectively, 
will be aggregated and the shares arising consequent 
thereto will be allotted to trustees to be nominated by 
the Board and subject to receiving the approval of the 
Shareholders therefor, such shares will be sold and the 
net sale proceeds arising therefrom be distributed to a 
charity/ charities approved by the Board of Directors. The 
donation will be e�ected by the Company within a 
reasonable period of time.

Residual fractions of ordinary shares above mentioned 
shall mean the above mentioned fractions arising after 
applying the following formula:

Number of shares held by a shareholder as 
at end of trading on the Record Date X 1 

42.0540540541

Status of the New Shares
The new ordinary shares to be so issued, immediately 
consequent to due allotment thereof to the entitled 
Shareholders, shall rank equal and pari passu in all 
respects with the existing issued and fully paid ordinary 
shares,of the Company.

Cash Dividend
A cash dividend of Rs. 0.30 per share will be distributed to 
the entitled Shareholders. The total cash dividend 
amounts to Rs. 8,668,482 (based on the issued and fully 
paid 28,894,939 ordinary shares as at 13th August 2025).

The cash dividend will be paid, subject to applicable 
government taxes, to the entitled Shareholders on a date 
to be notified in due course.
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Listing approval
An application has been made to the CSE for listing, has 
been approved ‘in principle’ by the CSE.

Shareholder Approvals
The proposed method of satisfying the above mentioned 
first and final dividend is subject to Shareholders grant- 
ing approval therefor by passing the resolutions set out in 
the attached Notice of Meeting pertaining to the follow- 
ing matters:

 Authorization to satisfy the first and final   
 dividend by an allotment and issue of new   
 shares:

Article 4 (b) and 16 (1) of the Company’s Articles of Associ-
ation and Companies Act No. 7 of 2007, the Board is 
empowered to pay a dividend by way of shares. The Board 
seeks the authorization of Shareholders for the satisfac-
tion of the first and final dividend by the issue of new 
ordinary shares in the manner set out above.

The relevant resolution to be passed by the Shareholders 
in this regard is set out in item 2(i) of the attached Notice 
of Meeting.

2. Authorization to distribute the balance portion of the 
first and final dividend by way of a cash dividend:

In addition to the scrip dividend, the Board has recom-
mended that the balance portion of the first and final 
dividend amounting to Rs. 0.30 per share be paid in cash 
out of the profits of the Company for the year ended 31st 
March 2025, subject to applicable government taxes. The 
payment of the said cash dividend requires the approval 
of the Shareholders at the AGM.

As mentioned previously,the first and final dividend is 
proposed to be satisfied, by the allotment and issue of 
new ordinary shares in the manner set out above and on 
the above-mentioned application of the above- 
mentioned share proportion.

The Company is required, in compliance with the above 
provisions, to seek Shareholder approval by an ordinary 
resolution for the proposed method of satisfaction of the 
first and final dividend by an allotment and issue of new 
ordinary shares in the manner set out above.

The relevant ordinary resolution to be passed by the 
Shareholders in this regard is set out in item 2(ii)of the 
attached Notice of Meeting.

Confirmation of Compliance
The Board of Directors hereby confirms that the 
allotment and issue of newshares is incompliance with 
the Articles of Association of the Company, the Listing 
Rules of the CSE and the provisions of the CA 2007.

Allotment of the New Shares
The Board of Directors emphasizes that the aforemen- 
tioned allotmentand issue of new shares is in satisfaction 
of the first and final dividend for the year ended March 
31st , 2025 and shall be dependent on and subject to the 
Shareholders passing the requisite resolutions.

Uploading of Shares in to CDS Accounts
In the event that the requisite resolution declaring the 
dividend (including its manner of satisfaction there of) by 
way of the issue and allotment of new shares is passed by 
the Shareholders,the accounts of the Shareholders 
whose shares are deposited in the CDS would be directly 
upload- ed with the new shares to the extent that such 
Share- holder has become entitled there to.
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The shares would be uploaded within five (05) market 
days from and excluding the Record Date. If a Shareholder 
holds multiple CDS accounts the total entitlement will be 
directly deposited to the respective CDS accounts propor- 
tionately. Pursuant to a Direction issued by the Securities 
and Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka (‘SEC’) under 
circular n No. 08/2010 dated November 22,2010 and 
circular No. 13/2010 dated November 30, 2010 issued by 
CDS.. Pertaining to the dematerialisation of listed securi- 
ties, the Shareholders who hold shares in scrip form (i.e. 
Share Certificates) as per the Share Register maintained 
by the Registrars of the Company, will not be issued 
Share Certificates for the new shares allotted and issued 
in their favour. Such Shareholders are accordingly 
requested to open an account with the CDS and to depos- 
it their Share Certificates in the CDS prior to the date of 
the AGM of the Company. This will enable the Company 
to deposit the new shares directly into the Shareholder’s 
CDS Account.

If a Shareholder fails to deposit his/her existing ordinary 
shares in the CDS prior to the date of the AGM, such 
Shareholder’s entitlement of new ordinary shares will be 
deposited by the Company after such Shareholder has 
opened a CDS Account and has informed the Company’s 
Registrars in writing of his/her CDS account number. 
Until such CDS account is opened by a Shareholder as 
afore- mentioned, the new ordinary shares that are 
allotted in his/ her favour will be registered in such share-
holder’s account in the Share Register maintained by the 
Regis- trars of the Company.

Consequent to the opening of the CDS account by such 
Shareholder, the new shares will be credited to such CDS 
account. Direct uploads pertaining to written requests 
received from Shareholders to deposit such shares will be 
done on a weekly basis.

Annual General Meeting (AGM)

The Annual Report comprising the Notice convening the 
AGM for September 19th, 2025 and setting out in item 2 
thereof, the relevant resolutions to be passed by the 
Shareholders in the above regard.

Form of Proxy
Shareholders who are unable to participate at the meet- 
ing are entitled to appoint a proxy to participate at the 
said meeting by and speak and also vote on their behalf, 
depending on their voting rights. If you wish to appoint 
such a proxy, kindly complete and return the enclosed 
Form of Proxy (in accordance with instructions to No. 69 
Sri Jinaratana Road, Colombo 02, not later than 
forty-eight (48) hours before the time appointed forthe 
holding of the AGM.

Yours faithfully,

By Order of the Board of Galle Face Capital Partners PLC

Renuka Enterprices (Pvt) Ltd Company 
Secretaries 
28th August 2025
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I / We ........................................................................................................................................................................... 

of …………………………………………………………………………………………. being a member/members of Galle Face Capital 

Partners  PLC, hereby appoint; ..........................................................................................................…………………………

………………………….……...............................………... (NIC No. …….………………………………………..) of  ……………………......

............................................................................................................................................................................................

……………………………………………………............................................................................…………………………………………….

Or failing her/him
Mr. S.V. Rajiyah, or failing him

Mr. M.S. Dominic, or failing him
Mr. M.R. Ratnasabapathy, or failing him

Mr. K. Liyanagamage or failing him
Mr. K.G.Vairavanathan

 

……………......……………….
Signature of Shareholder

Note:
(a)    A proxy need not be a member of the Company.
(b)    Instructions regarding completion appear overleaf.

Form of Proxy

For Against

1. 

2. 

4. 

3.

 

5.
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as my/ our proxy to represent me / us and to speak and to vote on my / our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of 
the Company to be held on the  19th day of September 2025 and at any adjournment thereof and at every poll which 
may be taken in consequence thereof.

To receive and consider the Report of the Directors and the Statement of the 
Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025 with the 
Report of the Auditors thereon.

To re-elect Mr. M.S.Dominic  as a director who retires by Rotation in terms of 
Article 73(1). 

To declare a total dividend of Rs. 2.15 per share, consisting of;
(a)a scrip dividend of  Rs. 1.85 cents  

(b)a cash dividend of Rs. 0.30 cents 

To authorise the Directors to determine contributions to charity. 

To re-appoint Messrs Ernst & Young Chartered Accountants as Auditors to the 
Company and authorise the Directors to determine their remuneration.



Instructions as to Completion of the Form of Proxy

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.
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To be valid, the completed Form of Proxy should be deposited at the Registered O�ce of the Company, at 
“Renuka House”, No. 69, Sri Jinaratana Road, Colombo 2, on or before 3.00 p.m.on 17th September 2025 in the 
manner specified in the Guidelines and Registration process for the Annual General Meeting (AGM) via online 
meeting platform’ attached hereto.

In perfecting the Form of Proxy, please ensure that all the details are legible.

Please indicate with an ‘X’ in the space provided how your proxy to vote on each resolution. If no indication is 
given the proxy, in his discretion, will vote, as he thinks fit.

In the case of a Company / Corporation, the proxy must be under its Common Seal which should be a�xed and 
attested in the manner prescribed by its Articles of Association.

In the case of proxy signed by the Attorney, the Power of Attorney must be deposited at the Registered O�ce at 
“Renuka House”, No. 69, Sri Jinaratana Road, Colombo 2, for registration.

 87



Corporate Information

  

Name of Company
Galle Face Capital Partners PLC

Registration No.
PQ 49

Legal Form
Quoted Public Company with Limited Liability

Principal Activity
Investment

Board of Directors
Mr. S. V. Rajiyah - Chairman 
Mr. M. R. Ratnasabapathy
Mr. M.S. Dominic
Mr. K. Liyanagamage
Mr. K.Vairavanathan

Audit Committee –
Mr. M. R. Ratnasabapathy - Chairman
Mr. M.S. Dominic
Mr. K.G.Vairavanathan

Related Party Transactions review Committee
Mr. M. R. Ratnasabapathy – Chairman 
Mr. M. S. Dominic
Mr. K.G.Vairavanathan

Remuneration Committee
Mr. M. S. Dominic – Chairman 
Mr. K.G.Vairavanathan
Mr. M. R. Ratnasabapathy

Nomination & Governance Committee
Mr. M. S. Dominic- Chairman
 Mr. K.G.Vairavanathan
Mr. M. R. Ratnasabapathy

Managers & Company Secretaries
Renuka Enterprises (Pvt) Ltd. 
69 Sri Jinaratana Road, 
Colombo 2

Registrars
S S P Corporate Services (Pvt) Ltd. 
546 Galle Road,
Colombo 3

Ultimate Parent Company
Renuka Holdings PLC
“Renuka House”
69 Sri Jinaratana Road, 
Colombo 2

Postal Address
P.O.Box 25, Colombo

Stock Exchange Listing
Colombo Stock Exchange

Auditors
Ernst & Young Chartered Accountants
Legal Consultants

Bankers
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC 
Standard Chartered Bank PLC




